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Alzchem at

sales generated by Alzchem
in the fiscal year 2024

Fiscal year 2023: ~ € 540.6 mn

was earnings per share
in the fiscal year 2024

Fiscal year 2023: € 3.40

Dividend in €/share 1.20
for fiscal year 2023

' Subject to approval by the

1.80
2024’

Annual General Meeting on May 8, 2025

a glance

EBITDA achieved by Alzchem
in the fiscal year 2024

Fiscal year 2023: ~ € 81.4 mn

employees support the processes
and products of Alzchem with their

know-how on a daily basis?

Fiscal year 2023: 1,689

2 Average value over the fiscal
year 2024

was the share price performance
in the fiscal year 2024

Fiscal year 2023: +45.7%

MARKETS

HEALTH &
NUTRITION

PHARMA

METALLURGY

AUTOMOTIVE &
DEFENSE

©0000

ANIMAL
NUTRITION

AGRICULTURE

CUSTOMER
SYNTHESIS

FINE
CHEMISTRY

RENEWABLE
ENERGIES

AGRI
SOLUTIONS
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Key figures

In EUR thousand 2020 2021 2022

Group sales 379,257 422,293 542,223 540,649
EBITDA 53,805 62,046 61,441 81,373
EBITDA margin 14.2% 14.7% 11.3% 15.1%
EBIT 30,708 37,572 35,898 55,473
Consolidated annual result 19,865 27,764 30,223 34,792
fandined and diated e 272 = a0
Equity ratio 19.4% 23.7% 34.5% 38.5%
Inventory intensity 17.8% 20.5% 22.6% 19.9%

a) CAGR = Compound Annual Growth Rate (final value/starting value)A(1/number of years)

b) After the transfer of shares to employees in 2023, calculated with the average number of outstanding shares: in the period 01/01-12/31/2023 with 10,169,572

shares. In the entire period of 2024 calculated with 10,174,204 shares.

554,231

CAGR?

10%

18%

27%

29%

29%

©0000
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Specialty Chemicals segment

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

Production and distribution of high-quality
chemical products (specialty chemicals)

KEY FIGURES

OVERVIEW

SALES in € mn

343

KEY BRANDS

EBITDA in € mn

9 4 CREAMINO'

brmex®

2023 LIVA Creapure’

Bioselect®

-
319,802 348,089 D U R

73,243 94,017 = . o
- #0i Creavitalis

22.9%

Nitroguanidin

DYHARD

In EUR thousand 2020 2021 2022
External sales 207,431 220,499 288,361
EBITDA 44125 50,664 53,014
EBITDA margin 21.3% 23.0% 18.4%
Inventories 38,410 53,971 68,535 55,998
Inventory intensity 18.5% 24.5% 23.8% 17.5%

Silzot
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Basics & Intermediates segment

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

Production of chemical intermediates for
direct sale or for refinement as specialty
chemical products

OVERVIEW

SALES in € mn

174

KEY BRANDS

EBITDA in € mn

Perlka
Co

CALCIPRO”

2024

KEY FIGURES
®
In EUR thousand 2020 2021 2022 2023 CaD
External sales 146,434 176,274 227,539 192,183 174,003 C ALZGT“D
NITRALZ"®
EBITDA margin 6.1% 6.2% 2.2% 5.0% 6.2%
Inventories 27,639 33,400 49,945 49,139
& Eminex

Inventory intensity 18.9% 18.9% 22.0% 25.6%




7 ABOUT ALZCHEM  Annual report 2024 Alzchem Group AG @ @ @ @

AGILE SCIENS
PURE RESUE

WHAT MOVES US

OUR “PRODUCTION VERBUND"
WE ACT: WE OFFER SOLUTIONS FOR GLOBAL CHALLENC
THE ESSENCE OF ALZCHEM

Important assist from the EU Commission: non-repayable
investment grant of EUR 34.4 million

Game plan: high priority on climate protection
New targets in sight: increase in earnings forecasts

The next bull’s eye: inclusion in the SDAX
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Our “production Verbund”

The main products of the Alzchem Group are

based on the same raw materials, namely lime and N,

coal. Along the calcium carbide/calcium cyana-

mide (NCN) chain, Alzchem integrates many pro- \ 188 Creapure
cessing and refining steps to create the respective .

products in the Basics & Intermediates and Spe-

cialty Chemicals segments. IE]IL\J/%

MELFLOCK

This vertical integration in production is a key \“m“x > Bioselect®)

strength of the Alzchem Group. It is only made %, CREAMING'

possible by the geographical proximity of the four DYHARD' ‘f’g s

historically grown sites in the Bavarian Chemi- \ i ) 2

cal Triangle. The “Verbund production” allows Motjye o%@ Dbrmex’

Alzchem to react flexibly to changes in demand, .
as many products from the Basics & Intermediates GUANIDINE
segment are also raw materials for products in the

DICYAN-
DIAMIDE

Aut, . + .
OmOtlve/Defense GUAN\D\“E Sitofex

Specialty Chemicals segment. _
GUANIDINE- CALZBT' ” Agriculture © Eminex
In addition, there are various synergies in the pro- \ one \ ., CALCIUM
i i CARBIDE ©, { CYANAMIDE .
duction process and |n.research and development. \ +~ AgriCuItUre Berlka
The “Verbund production” secures the company a (.:
high degree of independence from external sup- ) Metallurgy /\
pliers. \CHD CALCIUM
Ca CARBIDE NITROGEN NITRALZ®
QCIPRD' . .
Silzot

il ¢
.,)))))))7’~, “¢
)
~
RENEWABLE
e Infrastructure ENEWABL

CARBON ENERGY

© Alzchem Group AG
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We act: we offer solutions for

global challenges

POPULATION GROWTH

In 1900, there were around 1.7 billion people living worldwide. By the year 2000, this figure had
risen to more than 6.1 billion and the United Nations estimates that we will be around 9.7 billion’
by 2050. As arable land is limited worldwide, we need efficient processes to continue supplying
the growing population with food. This is where Alzchem comes in: with our specialty products,
we support successful, efficient and sustainable agricultural production in agriculture and an-
imal nutrition worldwide.

1 Source: UN forecast on the development of the world population (January 1, 2023)

Dormex’ CREAMINO' Berlka

HEALTHY AGING

People are getting older and older, especially in the western industrialized nations. In 2000,
the average global life expectancy was around 67 years, and by 2020 it had risen to around
73 years. Scientists expect it to rise further in the coming years. At the same time, civilization
and age-related diseases are on the rise and awareness of health and nutrition is growing.
Alzchem also provides answers here with products in the areas of food supplements, phar-
maceuticals, cosmetics and health.

Pharma-

Creapure’  popstoffe

#8I Creavitalis' Bioselect” HVA
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CLIMATE PROTECTION

Energy efficiency and renewable energies are crucial for the future of our planet and are be-
coming increasingly important worldwide. Examples of this are the Green Deal in the EU and
corresponding measures in the latest 5-year plan in China and the global efforts to quickly
replace combustion engines and completely free the energy supply from fossil fuels.

Alzchem is ideally positioned to participate in this development. We offer products for hydro-
gen-powered vehicles, the lightweight construction of vehicles and aircraft and in wind energy.
At the same time, as a major consumer, we benefit directly from the change in the electricity
mix and develop sustainable products with a negative CO, balance.

DYHARD  Silzot & Eminex

®E 00

SAFETY

Safety is a fundamental human need. It gives us a feeling of protection and security, whether
at work or in everyday life — for example when driving. At Alzchem, we produce an important
raw material that reliably triggers airbags even after years of use. It also plays a decisive role
in defense technology: it is essential for the production of propellants for artillery shells. Safety
ensures the protection of human life and the defense of countries. In the current security sit-
uation, we have a special significance and responsibility, as we are the only supplier of this raw
material in the western hemisphere.

Nitroguanidin Guanidinnitrat
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AGILE SCIENCE, PURE RESULTS

The essence of Alzchem

Alzchem is an international manufacturer of a wide range A highlight of 2024 was the partnership with FC Bayern Bas-

of specialty chemical products. What the company needs
for its production is primarily lime, coal, nitrogen and en-
ergy. From this list of ingredients, Alzchem has developed
a wide range of products over the years that are geared
towards global social developments. Based on the so-called
NCN chain, these are products with a typical nitrogen-car-
bon-nitrogen bond that are useful in a variety of applica-
tions. These primarily include the food supplement industry,
agriculture, metallurgy, the pharmaceutical industry, the
agro-industry and renewable energies. For many years, the
Alzchem Group has focused on the field of specialty chem-
icals and today benefits from the resulting comprehensive
expertise. The slogan “agile science, pure results” expresses
the fact that Alzchem thinks and acts in an agile manner and
consistently drives forward further innovations.

ketball (FCBB): Alzchem is now an official Gold Partner and
supports the club as part of a pioneering sponsorship com-
mitment. Like Alzchem, FCBB stands for success: it has won
six German championships and the German Cup five times.
The club is the only German club to play in the EuroLeague,
the world’s most prestigious and demanding competition
after the US NBA. Basketball requires precision, agility and
flexibility — qualities that also characterize Alzchem. This
is why the review of the fiscal year 2024 is to be given a
"sporting framework” from the world of basketball. After all,
sport and business actually have a lot in common!

STRONG THROUGH ADAPTATION
AND PASSION

Especially when it comes to dynamism and fair play, sport
and business are similar in many respects. Both areas re-
quire constant adaptability and quick reactions to change.
In sport, athletes have to adapt their tactics to be success-
ful on the pitch, while companies constantly develop their
business strategy to remain competitive in the market.

Fair play also plays a central role in both worlds: in sport, it
means respect for the rules, the referees and the opponent;
in business, it stands for ethical behavior and transparency.
In both areas, it is about delivering top performance with
passion and integrity. These values are also reflected in the

@ Alzchem Group new partner of FC Bayern Basketball

®E 00

unique atmosphere and dynamics of basketball: the sound
of the squeaking soles of shoes on the hall floor, the sound
of the ball bouncing when dribbling, the loud communica-
tion between the athletes and the cheers when a shot is suc-
cessfully made. Basketball is a way of life and at the same
time one of the most fascinating sports in the world: thanks
to its speed, athleticism and the perfect blend of precise
teamwork and individual brilliance.

Below, we present our highlights from the fiscal year 2024.
Find out which moves were made, and which challenges
were successfully overcome. And how Team Alzchem also
left the court victorious in 2024.
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FIRST QUARTER

Important assist from the EU Com-
mission: non-repayable investment
grant of EUR 34.4 million

SUCCESSFUL WITH CLEVER PASSES AND CLEAR TACTICS:
THE ALZCHEM YEAR 2024 AS A BASKETBALL GAME

The year begins with a strong first quarter. Team Alzchem pursues its proven tactic of consistent transformation towards
higher-margin specialty chemicals and is thus able to score important points. The result: disproportionately strong
earnings growth with constant Group sales at the high level of the previous year. The highlight of the first quarter is an
important assist from the EU Commission: following a Europe-wide selection process, it grants the company a non-re-
payable investment subsidy of EUR 34.4 million in March 2024 as part of the ASAP (“Act in Support of Ammunition

Production”) funding instrument.

Over the next two and a half years, the company will make targeted investments in the expansion of production ca-
pacities for nitroguanidine and modernize and expand the existing plants for guanidine nitrate. A special feature here
is that all raw materials and precursors will be produced directly in Alzchem'’s German plants.

The exceptionally high product quality is based on consistent quality control, the careful selection of raw materials
and the fully integrated production chain — from dicyandiamide to calcium cyanamide and carbide. This commitment
not only guarantees reliability but also underlines the demand for the highest standards along the entire value chain.

@ Alzchem Group AG plans to double nitroguanidine production capacity in German
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Team Alzchem continues to consistently implement its com-
prehensive climate roadmap and is also supported by the
Federal Office of Economics and Export Control (BAFA) on
its way to climate neutrality by 2033. In June, Alzchem re-
ceived funding commitments totaling around EUR 850,000
for climate protection measures. The company is delighted
with the government’s recognition of its efforts to drive for-
ward climate protection and reduce its own CO, emissions.
Specialty chemicals can make an important contribution to
sustainability — the company has long been convinced of
this. To this end, Alzchem continues to work on innovative
solutions for saving energy, recovering heat and increasing
efficiency, which make both economic and ecological sense.

SECOND QUARTER

®E 00

Game plan: high priority
on climate protection

There is alsd’-an outstanding product in the product
world that has é-.,'positive impact on climate protec-
tion: Eminex®. This adqitive for liquid manure and biogas
fermentation residues, which is added during storage, can
permanently reduce the rﬁ'e_thane, CO, and nitrous oxide
emissions — three essential gféenhouse gases — by as much
as 90% to 100%. This is climaf'en protection made easy —
thanks to Eminex®, an absolute noi'/elty on the world market.

In order to reward regional farmeré‘-__for their commitment
to climate protection, Alzchem is Iauhching “climate spon-
sorships” in the spring, which will remunerate the use of
Eminex® Here, for example, companiés or local authorities
take on sponsorships for environment_}e\l and climate servic-
es provided by agricultural businesses. This regional climate
alliance strengthens local agricultun"e in the long term. It
should be particularly emphasized ‘_c-hat the climate and en-
vironmental protection measures_:i’h this project are imple-
mented directly on site and are therefore — in contrast to
international certificates — ea-s'ily traceable.

@ Click he_ré for the video: Eminex®— Climate protection made eas

HALF-TIME BREAK: ANALYSIS AND
DISCUSSION OF TACTICS

Team Alzchem is very satisfied with the strong performance
and the significant progress made in the first half of 2024.
In addition to the operating business, this also applies to
the implementation of the climate roadmap, which is pro-
gressing well. With savings in Scope 1 of 2.3%, Alzchem has
already reached the first important milestones to achieve
a CO, reduction of around 90,000 tons per year by 2030,
which corresponds to more than 75% of today’s annual CO
emissions in Scope 1.

2

During the half-time break, the team reflects on the further
challenges of the third and fourth quarters. The global po-
litical developments and economic uncertainties are clear-
ly noticeable. However, the team spirit remains unbroken.
“"WE" is and remains the motto of Team Alzchem. The tactics
for the second half of the game are discussed together. The
Team Alzchem players refocus in order to start the second
half stronger — of course, with the in-house creatine “Made
in Bavaria” for an extra energy boost!

@ Climate roadmap of the Alzchem Group
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THIRD QUARTER

New targets in sight: increase
In earnings forecasts

The third quarter gets off to a very good start: in July,
Alzchem sets itself new, higher earnings targets for 2024.
Group EBITDA is now expected to grow to over EUR 100
million instead of around EUR 90 million, while sales ex-
pectations remain unchanged. The increase in the EBITDA
forecast leads to a rise in the EBITDA margin forecast from
previously around 15.8% to over 17.5%. The reason for the
increase in the EBITDA forecast is the stronger growth and
thus the shift in the product mix towards Specialty Chem-
icals.

In the third quarter, Alzchem also shows that it can not only
react at lightning speed but also act with foresight. With

quick dribbles and precise passes, they extended their lead,

"'in__cluding in the Animal Nutrition area.

NEW JERSEY: REBRANDING AT
CREAMINO®

From August, Creamino® sports a newjeréé'y in-the form of an

updated brand image that focuses primarily on the 'i"rhpro,v_e.c_j
energy metabolism of animals. The new slogan “Power up

your feed” clearly emphasizes this aspect and lays the foun-
dation for the updated brand image. In 2024, Creamino® was

@ Creamino brand page

a great success for the Alzchem Group. Overall, impressive
progress was made in terms of both production capacity and
market presence.

With the additive Creamino®, it is demonstrably possible to
get more performance out of feed for livestock — making
both feed production and animal rearing better, more effi-
cient and more sustainable. The improved feed conversion
through Creamino® enables farms to reduce the total amount
of feed required, which contributes to greater sustainability
in livestock farming. The active ingredient guanidinoacetic
acid (GAA) improves energy metabolism and ensures healthy
and productive livestock. This enables resource-conserving
feeding, healthy growth and optimized feed production.

OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCE:
PLATINUM MEDAL IN THE
SUSTAINABILITY RANKING

In Europe, the importance of sustainability in a company de-
termines whether it has a financially viable future — keyword

'.""'sus.ta_inable finance”. For many years now, the Alzchem }
Group Hé’s--be_g_r_\ integrating important environmental an_d_.--"'

social issues as Wéli»-as__'_sustainable corporate governance

into its busi-
ness activities beyond
the legal framework and in Au-
gust 2024 receives the Platinum Medal""

from EcoVadis for the first time for its-‘butstanding achieve-
ments in the area of corporate social"responsibility. With 84
out of 100 achievable points, the_,c‘bmpany is among the top

1% of companies assessed by EcbVadis worldwide. Alzchem

thus underlines its commitr_nént to sustainable, entrepre-
neurial thinking and actior_\_.-és well as its social responsibility.

The EcoVadis methodgtbgy is based on international sus-
tainability standards.(Global Reporting Initiative, United
Nations Global Combact, ISO 26000) and is monitored by
a scientific pane_,l-'bf CSR and supply chain experts to pro-
duce reliable CSR ratings. The company’s activities in the
areas of the_s"énvironment, labor and human rights, ethics
and sustajn’able procurement are evaluated. The company
is among the leaders in all of these areas. The third quarter
also cvl»é'arly goes to Alzchem.

@ Sustainability at Alzchem
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FOURTH QUARTER

The next bull’s eye:
inclusion in the SDAX

Team Alzchem continues to focus on implementing the game plan and achieves a real bull's eye in October:
the inclusion of Alzchem shares in the SDAX selection index. The fans are celebrating, as this makes Alzchem
one of the 160 largest and most liquid listed companies in Germany. An important milestone and a clear
sign of the team’s successful tactics. Although the global market remains challenging, Team Alzchem
remains on course for growth thanks to its unique “production Verbund” and agility.

DEFENSE IS ON THE BALL: NITROGUANIDIN WITH
INCREASING IMPORTANCE

Regardless of the great course of the game, Alzchem is also resolving comprehensive

growth investments and future-oriented projects in Germany in the last quarter. The

focus is on doubling the production capacities for the product nitroguanidine as well

as the renewal and expansion of the existing plants for the production of guanidine
nitrate, the precursor of nitroguanidine. Alzchem is able to conclude contracts with
several customers from the defense sector who have agreed to make significant
contributions to the financing of the new plant in the common interest. This means
that the largest investment in the company’s history to date can be carried out
largely without additional debt or equity. The new production capacities are sched-
uled to come on stream in the second half of 2026.

In parallel to the measures in Germany, Team Alzchem is intensifying its search for a
site for a plant in the USA, where it can also conclude a preliminary agreement. The
US Department of Defense has already pledged funding of USD 150 million for the
construction of a production facility by the end of 2029 if Alzchem finds a suitable site

&)
K() /J Alzchem Group AG moves up to the SDAX on October 2, 2024
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over the next two years. This shows that Team
Alzchem is also on its way to new heights in-
ternationally.

The game continues dynamically: with
strong teamwork and a clear focus on
customer orientation, Alzchem plays its
way through every challenge. The heav-
yweight Human Nutrition shows how to
dominate in the zone.

EXCITING “CRUNCH
TIME"”: NEW COLLABORA-
TIONS IN BALL SPORTS WITH
CREATINE

When the opponent is already running out of steam,
Alzchem shows its versatility: new collaborations are en-
tered into, investments and subsidies flow in. The partner-
ship with FC Bayern Basketball and the American football
team Munich Ravens, which has been in place since No-
vember, is particularly impressive. Alzchem supports both
teams with the creatine product Creapure® and scores fur-
ther points on the playing field of top sports with new target
groups and market segments.

The product Creapure® has been valued as a premium cre-
atine in sports nutrition for over 25 years. Both profession-
al and recreational athletes from all over the world rely on
its purity and effectiveness. The Alzchem Group is the only
producer of creatine monohydrate outside Asia. It manu-
factures this product under the brand names Creapure®,
Creavitalis® and LIVADUR® in its own purpose-built produc-
tion facilities in Chiemgau, Bavaria.

Creapure

BASKETBALL

Official Partner

‘@ Creapure® — The premium brand for creatine worldwide, Made in Germany.

SElGINI

FINAL WHISTLE: NEW ASSISTANT
COACH AND AN EXTREMELY SUC-
CESSFUL GAME IN 2024

Almost at the end of the game, the course is set for contin-
uous and sustainably successful development in manage-
ment. In December 2024, Martina Spitzer is appointed as
a new member of the Management Board for three years
as of January 1, 2025. In her new position as Chief Sales Of-
ficer (CSO), she will be responsible for the areas of Health
& Nutrition (Creapure®), Fine Chemicals (Chemicals & Appli-
cations) and Sustainability (ESG). Ms. Spitzer has been with
Team Alzchem for over 25 years and brings extensive ex-
pertise in marketing and sales as well as a clear vision for in-
novation and sustainability. The team managers will ensure
continuity and stability with this reinforcement in order to
secure the long-term success of Alzchem Group AG.

The final siren sounds, bringing an exciting and successful
fiscal year 2024 for Alzchem to an end. The team leaves the
court highly satisfied. It has once again shown that it can
achieve great success through teamwork and passion. With
the “Verbund production”, the team ensures a high degree
of independence from external suppliers and reacts flexi-
bly to changes in demand. The company’s digitalization and
specialization are also progressing as planned.

With agility in action, a highly innovative portfolio and a
strong commitment to sustainability, the “hidden champi-
on”, market and continental leader in its niches, is increas-
ingly stepping into the limelight.
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TO THE

SHAREHOLE

INTERVIEW WITH THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
ALZCHEM SHARE

®E 00

BASKETBALL

Creapure

Official Partner
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Interview with the Management Board

Klaus Englmaier

COO
With Alzchem since 1988

Departmental
responsibility:

Production and Technol-
ogy, Environment, Safety,
Health, Quality, Engineering,
Process Development and
Optimization

Martina Spitzer
CSO

With Alzchem since 1999
Departmental
responsibility:
Marketing, Sales, ESG

Andreas Niedermaier

CEO
With Alzchem since 1999

Departmental
responsibility:

Supply Chain Management,
Corporate Strategy, Legal,
Patents & Trademarks,

Risk Management

Dr. Georg Weichselbaumer

CSO
With Alzchem since 2012

Departmental

responsibility:

Marketing, Sales, Innovation Man-
agement & Process Development,
R&D, Product Safety/Approval

Andreas Losler

CFO
With Alzchem since 2022

Departmental

responsibility:

Finance, Controlling, Account-
ing, Information Technology,
Human Resources & Social
Affairs, Corporate Communica-
tions & Investor Relations

The fiscal year 2024 was a complete
success for Alzchem. What were the
main topics that kept you busy?

NIEDERMAIER: We have seen it all: from our promotion to
the SDAX, to the preparation of the largest investment in
the company’s history to date, accompanied by financial
support from the EU and our customers to the increase in
our earnings forecast to over EUR 100 million in EBITDA at
mid-year. In addition, we have also become a sponsor of
FC Bayern Basketball with our Creapure® in order to multi-
ply awareness of the brand once again — because almost all
professional athletes take creatine products, and hopefully
more and more will also take Creapure® in the future. We
have also been rated platinum by EcoVadis for sustainabil-
ity — only 1% of the companies assessed achieve this. And
last but not least, our share price has also developed very
positively.

An impressive potpourri, but 2024
was also another year of sluggish
economic development, a weak
chemical industry, site discussions in
Germany and geopolitical tensions.
Once again, none of this seemed to
affect Alzchem?



19 TO THE SHAREHOLDERS  Annual report 2024 Alzchem Group AG

LOSLER: This impression is created by the disproportion-
ately strong increase in EBITDA of 29.4% to EUR 105.3 mil-
lion compared to sales growth. We owe this excellent earn-
ing power and the robustness of our strategy to our broadly
diversified positioning and our “Verbund production”. How-
ever, it is also true that we could be even more dynamic if
the environment was better. After all, we also have areas
such as Custom Manufacturing and NITRALZ® , which are
more closely linked to the economy and the development of
the chemical industry.

DR. WEICHSELBAUMER: The strong foundation of our suc-
cess is in fact our broad positioning across many target
markets, which we develop with innovations and the highest
quality. We are the only Western supplier of food supple-
ments to score highly with our customers. In addition, we
are highly flexible in responding to changes in volume, e.g.,
in the defense sector, and are therefore a reliable supplier
for our partners. Consistent market analysis and innovative
product development have enabled us to establish a strong
and sustainable market position. This combination even
makes us the sole supplier outside China in some areas.

ENGLMAIER: And the great thing is that we have other
arrows in our quiver, such as the methane and Co, inhib-
itor Eminex® and our extremely versatile creatine products
Creapure®, Creavitalis® and LIVADUR®. We see potential
here that can significantly exceed industry growth. At the
same time, it is important to
us that no dependencies
and therefore no risks
arise, such as those
that other compa-
nies with a special
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We owe this excellent
earning power and
high robustness to our

strategy.

focus on e-mobility or photovoltaics have recently had to
painfully experience.

Doesn’t the major investment pro-
gram in nitroguanidine production,
an indispensable component of
NATO defense technology, pose just
such a risk?

LOSLER: The opposite is the case: we are tapping into enor-
mous opportunities while minimizing risk. This is because
the expansion in Germany and potential further investments
in the USA are largely covered by third parties. These are
non-repayable subsidies from the EU as well as commit-
ments from major customers and the US Department of De-
fense. The maximum we have to bear from our own resourc-
es is bridge financing during the investment phase. Thanks
to this special constellation, we will also be able to play a
good role in this growth area.

DR. WEICHSELBAUMER: With the escalation of the Rus-
sia-Ukraine war and the Western aid for Ukraine, demand
for our Nitroguanidine has increased significantly. No ques-
tion about it. However, we also see that there are now other
targets for a strategic safety stock for our product, which
strongly secures demand. At the same time, it must — un-
fortunately — be stated that the global geopolitical devel-
opment even speaks for a long-term continuation of the
defense technology boom.

NIEDERMAIER: Despite these enormous opportunities, we
also make sure that we optimize the risk profile and do not
create any dependencies on special economic cycles. The
evaluation of potential sites in the USA and the scope of the
investments also require maximum management attention.
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My colleague Dr. Weichselbaumer will therefore make 100%
use of the freedom resulting from the generational change
that has been initiated and the partial reallocation of tasks
in the Management Board team for this pioneering topic of
the future.

Where did the decision to look for
a site in the USA come from? So far,
you have only been active in Germa-
ny and Sweden.

DR. WEICHSELBAUMER: The USA as a site option for addi-
tional nitroguanidine production is an important prerequi-
site for the US customer. At the same time, this opens up
additional opportunities for us to produce in an attractive
local market, to at least partially escape the discussion
about additional tariffs and trade barriers by the new US
government and to benefit from further site advantages
such as lower energy costs; chemical value creation is highly
valued in the USA!

Tariffs are a good topic: how do you
see the development in the USA and
how do you assess this topic driven
by Trump?

ENGLMAIER: Today, we assume that we are well positioned.
With our products, we are often the only manufacturer in
the West — mostly with competition from Asia. From to-
day’s perspective, the USA will introduce even higher tariffs
for the Asians than for Germany. This means that the issue
should work more in our favor.
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Will Alzchem then leave Germany?

NIEDERMAIER: We certainly do not want to talk about site
fatigue or a withdrawal from Germany. On the contrary: |
would like to thank our entire workforce in particular. It is
simply very impressive what this team achieves and how it
knows how to assert itself on a global scale every day. | am
also firmly convinced that Germany as a site is capable of
continuing to generate innovations. Our team is the best
proof of this and is ready to make its contribution every day.
On behalf of the entire Management Board, | would like to
express my sincere thanks and appreciation to all our em-
ployees worldwide.

Ms. Spitzer, you are a new member
of the Management Board team and
have taken on responsibility for ESG,
among other things. What drives you
and your colleagues?

SPITZER: We are pioneers when it comes to ESG. We feel
very comfortable in this role. Our climate roadmap is the
best example of this. After all, we were the first company
in Germany to put its climate roadmap to a shareholder
vote at the Annual General Meeting. Another example is a
current project together with SAP, in which we are able to
calculate the carbon footprint of our most important prod-
ucts automatically and transparently. Digitalization and ESG
issues go hand in hand here — and once set up correctly, the
benefits clearly outweigh the costs.

ENGLMAIER: You can complain about the excessive bu-
reaucracy and additional costs associated with ESG issues
— as well as the difficulty in reading sustainability reporting,
which inevitably goes hand in hand with our full compliance
with CSRD requirements. And of course, we are annoyed
that the entire chemical industry with its important prod-
ucts receives little attention in the EU ESG taxonomy. For
us, however, there is no alternative. Above all, we want to
minimize the environmental impact for future generations.
At the same time, we also see ourselves in a pioneering role
— for the chemical industry, for German SMEs and as a com-
pany that owes it to its fellow citizens in its regions not only
to be good at what it does, but to want to achieve the best
possible results.

Can you give specific examples of
your ESG commitment?

SPITZER: The current sustainability report — which, by the
way, has been audited economically by our auditor on a vol-
untary basis — contains numerous examples. | would par-
ticularly like to highlight the fundamental importance of the
fact that we cover 100% of our energy requirements with
electricity — and not with fossil fuels — and can therefore
already switch completely to renewable energies as soon as
these are available in sufficient quantities. Another current
highlight is our use of hydrogen instead of natural gas in a
production facility since the fourth quarter of 2024, where
we use the surplus hydrogen as an emission-free energy
source to replace natural gas and significantly reduce CO,
emissions. This also enables us to reduce energy costs.
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NIEDERMAIER: | would also like to emphasize that ESG top-
ics are part of our Management Board work — both in the
team as a whole and specifically in Ms. Spitzer’s area of re-
sponsibility. She has been a member of the Management
Board since January 1, 2025, having already demonstrated
her expertise in the Alzchem Group for 25 years. Ms. Spitzer
in particular has been instrumental in driving forward the
topic of sustainability, making us as a company a standard
setter in Germany.

SPITZER: We have been committed to important environ-
mental and social issues beyond the legal framework for
many years. We also have this audited by independent third
parties. In August 2024, for example, we received the plat-
inum award from EcoVadis for our performance in the area
of corporate social responsibility for the first time. With 84
out of 100 achievable points, we are among the top 1% of
companies assessed by EcoVadis worldwide. We are very
proud of this.

vy

Another current highlight
is our use of hydrogen

instead of natural gasin a
production plant.
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The outperformance in
2024 and our inclusion

in the SDAX have lifted
us to a new level on the
capital market.

With a price increase of around 118 %,
the Alzchem share is one of the top
performers in 2024. What are your
targets for 2025?

NIEDERMAIER: We are constantly working to achieve an ap-
propriate valuation for our company and our shareholders.
The fact that we were able to significantly outperform all
relevant indices in 2024 and were ultimately included in the
SDAX selection index is a great recognition of our strategy
and the successes of recent years. At the same time, | be-
lieve that the share price gain has not yet anticipated too
much. On the contrary: | also see a catch-up effect in the
share price increase in 2024, because we have already done
a lot of things right in the years before that, both operation-
ally and strategically, without this being directly reflected in
the share price. | therefore remain very optimistic about the
future share price performance if we continue to implement
our plans so successfully. Incidentally, the equity analysts
also share our confidence, as their price targets range be-
tween EUR 72.00 and EUR 82.00.

LOSLER: The outperformance in 2024 and our inclusion in
the SDAX have lifted us to a new level on the capital market.
That is why we are also being covered by additional analysts.
Most recently, Kepler Cheuvreux and Montega joined us.
There has also been a noticeable increase in interest from
international investors. Of course, we are pleased about
this. We will use these additional opportunities to establish
ourselves permanently in this league with an even stronger
presence and investor relations.

Should the share buyback program
launched at the end of 2024 also be
seen in this context?

LOSLER: The share buyback serves as an additional instru-
ment for us, for example in the case of possible acquisitions.
Alternatively, we will also issue our own shares to employ-
ees of the Alzchem Group as part of an employee partici-
pation program. In addition, we continue to aim to increase
the free float and liquidity of our shares. Together with our
anchor shareholders, we succeeded in doing this again to a
significant extent in 2024. The free float was increased by
around 5 percentage points in 2024. And the great thing is
that this pleasing development continued in 2025. At the
end of February, the free float was already around 62%.

Shareholders were not only pleased
with the share price performance
in 2024, but also with a higher divi-
dend. What happens next?

NIEDERMAIER: That is right, we increased the dividend from
EUR 1.05 to EUR 1.20 per share in 2024. We will raise our div-
idend proposal to the Annual General Meeting 2025 again,
this time to EUR 1.80. | think this gives us a good balance
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between an appropriate dividend payout and strengthening
equity for further additional growth.

Where are sales and profits headed
in 2025?

LOSLER: The jump in profits in 2024 was already very strong,
but it cannot simply be continued in the same way, as new
plant capacities naturally also played a role here. Neverthe-
less, we are still aiming high. We do not want to stand still,
but to grow again in terms of sales. Our goal is to increase
sales to around EUR 580 million. We also want to raise the
operating result (EBITDA) again, this time to around EUR 113
million.

NIEDERMAIER: We remain just as optimistic for 2025 as we
were for 2024. The potential in Human Nutrition with our
Creapure®, in Animal Nutrition and in Defense, i.e., Nitrogua-
nidine, is unbroken. We also see further opportunities, such
as with Eminex®. We will also succeed in 2025 in shifting
our product mix further towards higher-margin Specialty
Chemicals and further improving the Basics & Intermediates
business. This will lay the foundation for additional stable
growth in 2025. At the same time, in 2025, we will also focus
very strongly on our major investments in Germany and, of
course, on the search for sites in the USA in order to be able
to generate sustainable profitable growth in the future.
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Report of the
Supervisory Board

Ladies and W Yernen,
Dear shareholiders,

The last, extremely successful fiscal year 2023 already amazed many observers of our compa-
ny. The fact that development accelerated once again in the reporting year — especially at such
a dynamic pace — came as quite a surprise, even to those who really know Alzchem. Not for us,
though: the fact that Alzchem not only proved to be particularly robust, but also highly successful,
even under difficult circumstances, is above all the result of a long-term strategy that has been
consistently pursued for some time and is increasingly focused on specialty chemicals. Overall, the
company achieved another record result in the fiscal year 2024 with EBITDA of EUR 105.3 million
on a sales base of EUR 554.2 million, which was once again higher than in the previous year.

It is hard to overlook the fact that the German economy and the chemical industry in particular
continue to face enormous adversity: contrary to rumors, energy prices are still far too high, sub-
stantial investment incentives that spur entrepreneurial activity can hardly be seen under the state
subsidy watering can and bureaucracy is forcing companies to make future investments abroad.
Even if our company in particular should seemingly have no reason to complain — in fact, Alzchem’s
successes have also had to be hard-earned under these circumstances.
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However, the bare figures alone do not adequately reflect the extraordinary achievements of
the past fiscal year. To name just three particularly impressive examples:

Keyword “growth”: at our German sites in Schalchen and Waldkraiburg, we began implementing
by far the largest future-oriented project in our company’s history in 2024. Over the next
two years, we will invest around EUR 140 million in the expansion and modernization of our
guanidine nitrate and nitroguanidine capacities with substantial financial support from the EU
and long-standing premium customers.

Keyword “internationalization”: with the support of the US Department of Defense, the
company has for the first time taken very concrete steps to operate a production site outside
Europe in the medium term. A US-based Alzchem is thus a realistic step closer. The task
defined in the preliminary agreement is to identify a suitable chemical site by the end of 2026
at the latest, where Alzchem will construct a nitroguanidine production plant fully funded by
the US Department of Defense within the following three years.

Keyword “capital market”: with the inclusion of the Alzchem Group in the SDAX last fall, our
company has also become noticeably more visible on the stock market. This can be seen
above all in the strongly increased interest shown by analysts, investors and the public in
the development of our activities. The fact that the Alzchem Group also achieved by far
the best share price performance of all companies in the DAX index family in its first year of
membership is a very special reason to be proud — but above all the well-deserved result of
an impressive fiscal year 2024.

The success of the fiscal year 2024, which is so clearly expressed in figures, is all the more
astonishing given that the Alzchem Group — how could it be otherwise — also had to contend
with the difficulties of an industrial company based in Germany that can be observed every-
where. The procurement of raw materials and, in particular, electricity at adequate prices
continues to make itself felt in our basic chemicals business, the general chemical slump has
not left our multipurpose business unscathed, and our nitrile business continues to suffer
from competitive disadvantages compared to Asian competitors. However, the associated
problems have been recognized and are being tackled decisively by management.
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“AGILE SCIENCE. PURE RESULTS” — under our ambitious Alzchem slogan, we not only com-

pleted a challenging fiscal year very well, but also successfully developed the growth drivers
of our product portfolio. Ultimately, it is these “crown jewels” that will ensure the long-term
future of our company:

» The superior quality of our Creapure® — now virtually the global standard for creatine in
its purest form — is already highly regarded by a wide range of customers. The amazing
versatility of this product is fortunately making itself felt in an increasingly recognized, ever-
expanding variety of sporting, medical, therapeutic and lifestyle applications. Our latest
creation, Creavitalis®, is a good example of this.

Creamino® has now achieved a breakthrough as a recognized feed additive for poultry, where
it is increasingly developing the dynamics inherent in its remarkable properties. Here, too, we
see other highly interesting areas of application, for example in the nutrition of other animal
species.

The impressive, scientifically proven properties of Eminex® in reducing CO, and methane
in liquid manure are well known. With the promotion of market-based marketing and sales
approaches, such as an attractive “CO, certificate” for agriculture, enormous emission savings
could be achieved. Regulatory support, which the Alzchem Group considers desirable, would
also open up further attractive prospects for climate protection.

Eminex® is the best example of the fact that the full potential of Alzchem products has by
no means been exhausted. However, the company is also in the process of researching and
developing completely new products along the NCN chain. On the part of the Supervisory
Board, we want to continue to effectively support the company in its efforts to promote
global megatrends such as mobility, healthy nutrition and sustainability.
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Focus of the Supervisory Board’s work

The work of the Supervisory Board in the reporting year was also characterized by the di-
verse challenges of an industrial company operating in Germany that is committed to sus-
tainability. The focus was primarily on the following topics:

« The Management Board’s plans for a possible expansion of activities abroad, namely in
the USA, received a great deal of attention in the reporting year. Despite the strategic
importance of the project, the planned construction of a production facility there is not about
relocation, but about a sensible expansion of the Alzchem Group'’s already global activities.
The Supervisory Board has supported this project wholeheartedly from the outset.

« The investments approved by the Supervisory Board in the reporting year following a
thorough review are closely related to this. These include, first and foremost, the expansion
and modernization of the guanidine nitrate and nitroguanidine plants at the Schalchen and
Waldkraiburg sites, the major overhaul of the carbide furnace in Hart and, finally, the two-
stage expansion of creatine production in Trostberg. In the opinion of the Supervisory Board,
the latter measure in particular fits perfectly into the logic of the “Specialty” expansion,
which promises considerable sales potential with comparatively low energy costs and higher
margins.

At this point, the management measures to secure the supply of raw materials to the Alzchem
Group, which the Supervisory Board again pursued with the utmost attention in the reporting
year, should be mentioned. These continue to focus on the supply of electricity. In 2024,
however, this also included the extension of the lime supply contract with one of our long-
standing partners.

« The Supervisory Board once again followed the Alzchem Group’s numerous ESG initiatives
and measures with the utmost attention. Under this now fixed item on the agenda, the
Supervisory Board was informed in particular about the progress made — as planned — in
implementing the climate roadmap.

Sustainability issues have also reached the Supervisory Board in the form of new regulatory
(auditing and monitoring) standards. The board therefore received training from company
experts on the content and requirements of CSRD reporting and German and European
supply chain legislation in particular. The Supervisory Board has noted with approval the
Management Board’s proposal to prepare the sustainability report for the reporting year in
the form of the CSRD standard, which will only have to be observed in the future.
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« A number of substances and products that are important for Alzchem continue to be the
focus of regulatory proceedings and measures by German and European authorities. These
include the EU Commission’s restriction proceedings on calcium cyanamide as a fertilizer, the
legal proceedings before the General Court of the European Union concerning the approval
of Alzogur® as a biocide and the continued threat of an export ban on chemical substances
and formulations not approved in the EU. We received regular reports on this from the
Management Board.

Management Board matters were also on our agenda: in addition to remuneration issues,
the appointment of Ms. Martina Spitzer to the Management Board, which was unanimously
approved by the Supervisory Board, is particularly noteworthy in this respect. Ms. Spitzer
has extensive specialist and management experience at Alzchem. Ms Spitzer’s term of office
began on January 1, 2025, and — in accordance with the corresponding recommendation of
the German Corporate Governance Code (GCGC) — will initially last three years, i.e., until the
end of 2027. This was accompanied by a reorganization of the schedule of responsibilities
determined by the Supervisory Board in agreement with the Management Board . With the
appointment of Ms. Spitzer, Alzchem has achieved the quota target of at least 20% women
on the Management Board, which has been set for some time but is particularly ambitious in
the chemical industry.

« Finally, the Supervisory Board dealt with a number of issues relevant to the share and
capital market. These included updating the qualification matrix for the Supervisory Board,
the dividend strategy, the question of responsibility for auditing the sustainability report
triggered by the inaction of the legislator and, last but not least, the approval of a share
buyback program worth a total of EUR 6 million that began in December 2024.

Composition of the Management Board and succession
planning

On January 1, 2024, the Management Board was expanded to include Mr. Losler, who took
over the role of CFO from Mr. Niedermaier (CEO), thus giving him the freedom to focus more
strongly on strategic issues. Since January 1, 2025, the Management Board team has been
complemented by Ms Spitzer, who has already taken over some of the CSO responsibilities
of Dr. Weichselbaumer, who will leave the Management Board at the end of 2025; in addition,
Ms Spitzer will take care of the sustainability issues that are essential for Alzchem.
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In accordance with the established annual cycle, the Supervisory Board once again ad-
dressed the succession planning for the Management Board developed jointly with the Man-
agement Board in the reporting year. The planning, which takes into account the candidates
in question and their specific skills as well as the appropriate development horizon for them,
was updated.

Working methods of the Supervisory Board

In the fiscal year 2024, the Supervisory Board performed the duties incumbent upon it in
accordance with the law, the Articles of Association and the rules of procedure with all due
care. It advised the Management Board in detail on the management of Alzchem Group AG
and the Alzchem Group and continuously monitored the management. At no time did the
Supervisory Board have any doubts about the legality and regularity of the Management
Board's activities.

The Supervisory Board continuously dealt with the current company situation and the future
development of the Alzchem Group. In addition to the aforementioned key topics, the Super-
visory Board meetings dealt with the development of sales and earnings, the net assets and
financial position, investment projects and the budget, personnel planning, the situation (in-
cluding the risk situation) of the Alzchem Group, the risk and compliance management sys-
tem (on which the Risk and Compliance Officers reported in detail to the Supervisory Board),
the internal control system and — with a particular focus — further corporate development
and strategy. The focus was also on the dynamics of the sales and procurement markets as
well as securing the long-term competitiveness of the Alzchem Group. “Sustainability” in all
its key facets for the company has been a fixed item on the agenda of every Supervisory
Board meeting of the Alzchem Group, in line with the recommendations given in the German
Corporate Governance Code.

In view of the various turbulences in the global economy, but especially in the German
economy, the Supervisory Board has been monitoring the resulting consequences for the
Alzchem Group very closely and has received regular reports. This makes the increase in
the company’s earnings forecast for the fiscal year 2024, which was announced in an ad hoc
announcement on July 30, 2024, all the more pleasing. In this regard, but also for all other
significant developments at the Alzchem Group, the Management Board has fully complied
with its statutory information obligations at all times by informing the Supervisory Board
regularly, promptly and comprehensively in written and oral form.

@ alzchem.com/de/investor-relations/corporate-governance/
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The Supervisory Board discussed the reports and documents received from the Manage-
ment Board in detail, in particular at the Supervisory Board meetings. Any deviations from
the plan were explained in detail by the Management Board and carefully examined by the
Supervisory Board. All business requiring approval — such as the modernization and expan-
sion of guanidine nitrate and nitroguanidine capacities — was presented to the Supervisory
Board by the Management Board in a proper and timely manner on the basis of informative
documents. As a result, the Supervisory Board approved all business submitted to it after
thorough information and consultation.

Outside of Supervisory Board meetings, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board maintained
a regular and intensive exchange of information with the Management Board and — with the
latter's consent — with the members of the management team and other key employees. In
this way, the Chairman was kept continuously informed about the current business situation
and all significant business transactions and developments. This exchange took place in an
open and constructive atmosphere at all times.

The rules of procedure governing the working methods and cooperation of the Management
Board and Supervisory Board are available for inspection by anyone on the company’s web-
site.

Meetings and resolutions of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board held a total of six meetings in the fiscal year 2024. Three meetings
were held in person and three meetings were held as video conferences. In addition, three
resolutions were passed in writing due to the urgency of the matters at short notice.

The Supervisory Board met without the Management Board on purely Supervisory Board-re-
lated topics and on agenda items for which an internal discussion within the Board appeared
appropriate, such as Management Board matters, questions relating to the annual financial
statements and other matters discussed with the auditor.

At the request of the Supervisory Board, the meeting on July 26, 2024, was combined with a
tour of the Schalchen plant.


https://www.alzchem.com/de/investor-relations/corporate-governance/
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Audit Committee

In the reporting year, the Audit Committee met a total of five times, each time on the meet-
ing days of the Supervisory Board. Two meetings were held in the form of a video conference,
while the remaining meetings were held in person.

At its meeting on February 26, 2025, the Audit Committee examined the annual financial
statements of Alzchem Group AG, the consolidated financial statements and the combined
management report, each for the fiscal year 2024. In doing so, it dealt in particular with the
key audit matters. The audit also included the non-financial information for Alzchem Group
AG and the Group.

The Chairwoman of the Audit Committee had previously reported to the committee several
times on the status of preparations and the progress of the audit 2024 and the discussions
and consultations she had held with the auditor RSM Ebner Stolz in this regard. This also
included a joint discussion with the auditor on audit risk, audit strategy and audit planning.

Nomination Committee

The company has not currently set up a nomination committee. In accordance with recom-
mendation D.2 of the GCGC, the Supervisory Board does not consider this to be expedient
due to “the [small] number of its members”, even in light of the Supervisory Board elections
due to take place in 2025. The tasks of the Nomination Committee are instead performed by
the full Supervisory Board.

The next regular election to the Supervisory Board will take place in 2025. The Annual Gen-
eral Meeting is responsible for electing the four shareholder representatives.

Individualized disclosure of participation in meetings
and resolutions

The meetings of the Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee held in the reporting year
were attended by all members of the respective bodies without exception. The participation
rate in both bodies was therefore 100%. The members of the Supervisory Board also took
part in all written resolutions and resolutions passed at the meetings. A detailed breakdown
by meetings, resolutions and participants is therefore not provided.
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Related Party Transactions (RPT)

There were no RPT-related business transactions to be presented to the Supervisory Board
in the reporting year.

Conflicts of interest

During the reporting period, no conflicts of interest arose among the individual members
of the Supervisory Board that would have had to be disclosed to the Supervisory Board (for
related party transactions, see above).

Training and further education of
Supervisory Board members

Alzchem Group AG supports the members of the Supervisory Board within the framework of
the statutory provisions in the training and further education measures necessary for their
activities. In the reporting year, this included training offered by the company on Superviso-
ry Board-specific aspects of capital market law and sustainability reporting. The tour of the
Alzchem plant in Schalchen, which took place during a Supervisory Board meeting, was also
part of this context; on this occasion, the Supervisory Board was able to discuss the challeng-
es associated with the upcoming investment measures with the plant management.

Finally, the members of the Supervisory Board attended various external training courses on
their own initiative in the reporting year. The respective events and their content — which in
2024 included reporting and auditing in accordance with the CSRD — are documented by the
Supervisory Board office on an ongoing basis. It also supports the members of the Superviso-
ry Board with information and materials that are helpful for their work (for example on devel-
opments in Supervisory Board-related best practices as well as new laws and court decisions).

Corporate Governance

With regard to its corporate governance, the Supervisory Board — in close coordination with
the like-minded Management Board — is primarily guided by the standards of good corpo-
rate governance formulated in the current version of the GCGC. Accordingly, in December
2024, the Management Board and Supervisory Board were able to adopt the declaration of
conformity in accordance with Section 161 AktG with only one deviation from the applicable
Code - relating to the Management Board remuneration system.
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The current declaration of conformity (including disclosed and justified deviations) is availa-
ble on the website, as are the older declarations. In accordance with Principle 23 of the GCGC,
the Management Board also explains the company’s corporate governance practices — both
for itself and for the Supervisory Board — in the declaration on corporate governance con-
tained in the combined management report.

Efficiency audit

The Supervisory Board regularly reviews the efficiency of its activities. In line with the usual
two-year cycle, another such review took place in 2024. To carry out this review, the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board each answered a comprehensive written questionnaire, the
(anonymous) results of which were evaluated by the Chairman with the assistance of the
Supervisory Board’s office and then presented to the members of the Supervisory Board. It
emerged that the Supervisory Board members are generally very satisfied with the organi-
zation, procedure and efficiency of the Supervisory Board’s work. The suggestions made by
Supervisory Board members (including the provision of information to Supervisory Board
members via SharePoint, the (virtual or face-to-face) form of Supervisory Board meetings
and the frequency of efficiency reviews) were taken up by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board and implemented in the course of the reporting year.

Audit of annual and consolidated financial statements

The annual financial statements 2024 of Alzchem Group AG were prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB), while the consolidated financial
statements were prepared in accordance with the principles of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). As in the previous year, the company has prepared a combined
management report for Alzchem Group AG and the Group for the fiscal year 2024. In ac-
cordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting on May 7, 2024, the Supervi-
sory Board commissioned RSM Ebner Stolz GmbH & Co KG Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Stuttgart (“RSM Ebner Stolz"), to audit the financial statements
of Alzchem Group AG and the Group for the fiscal year 2024 and in this context also agreed
the auditor’s remuneration to be paid for this. Furthermore, together with RSM Ebner Stolz,
the Supervisory Board determined the focal points of the audit to be carried out. RSM Ebner
Stolz appointed Mr. Straub as the auditor responsible for the audit of the financial state-
ments; he is responsible for this position for the first time following the internal rotation that
took place at RSM Ebner Stolz.

@ alzchem.com/de/investor-relations/corporate-governance/
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The auditor audited the annual financial statements and the consolidated financial state-
ments prepared by the Management Board, including the combined management report,
and reported in writing on the results of its audit, which did not give rise to any objections.
The annual and consolidated financial statements for 2024 received an unqualified audit
opinion from the auditor. In addition, the auditor determined in the course of his assessment
of the risk management system that the Management Board has taken the measures re-
quired under Section 91 (2) of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) to identify risks that
could jeopardize the continued existence of the company at an early stage.

Subsequently, the Audit Committee and then the Supervisory Board reviewed the annual
financial statements and the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year 2024 as
well as the combined management report — taking into account the auditor’s report — for
completeness and accuracy. All documents and the auditor’s reports were submitted to the
Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board in good time and were discussed and examined
in detail at the balance sheet meetings of the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board
on February 26, 2025, in the presence of all committee and Supervisory Board members. The
auditor reported there on the key findings of its audit and was available to the Audit Com-
mittee and the Supervisory Board to answer questions and provide additional information. In
particular, the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board examined whether the assess-
ments made by the Management Board in the combined management report were consist-
ent with the assessments made in the reports to the Supervisory Board during the year and
whether the statements in the combined management report were consistent with the Audit
Committee’s and the Supervisory Board’s own assessment.

After its own thorough review of the documents submitted to it, the Supervisory Board — fol-
lowing the recommendation of the Audit Committee — raised no objections to these docu-
ments, agreed to the audit reports and approved the annual financial statements, the con-
solidated financial statements and the combined management report. The annual financial
statements of Alzchem Group AG prepared by the Management Board were thus adopted.

The Supervisory Board discussed in detail the Management Board’s proposal for the ap-
propriation of profits to distribute a dividend of EUR 1.80 per share and carry forward the
remaining balance sheet profit to new account against the background of the company’s
liquidity and its financial and investment planning for the fiscal year 2025. Following a de-
tailed examination, the Supervisory Board approved the Management Board’s proposal for
the appropriation of profits, which envisages a payout ratio of around 34%, also in line with
the recommendation of the Audit Committee.


https://www.alzchem.com/en/investor-relations/corporate-governance/
https://www.alzchem.com/de/investor-relations/corporate-governance/
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In addition, the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board reviewed and approved the
non-financial (Group) statement in accordance with Sections 315b and 315c¢ in conjunction
with Sections 289c to 289e HGB, which already largely complies with the future CSRD stand-
ard. On behalf of the Supervisory Board, this declaration was itself previously subjected to a
business audit — also by RSM Ebner Stolz — to obtain limited assurance.

Composition of the Management Board, Supervisory
Board and committees; female quota

In the fiscal year 2024, the Management Board consisted of Mr. Andreas Niedermaier (CEO),
Mr. Andreas Loésler (CFO), who was appointed on January 1, 2024, as well as Mr. Klaus Dieter
Englmaier (COO) and Dr. Georg Weichselbaumer (CSO). The mandates of Mr. Niedermaier
and Mr. Losler run until the end of 2026, while those of Mr. Englmaier and Dr. Weichselbaum-
er run until the end of 2025. Ms. Martina Spitzer (CSO) was also appointed to the Manage-
ment Board as of January 1, 2025, until the end of 2027. Thus, the female quota of 20% set as
target by the Supervisory Board for the first time in April 2024 and valid until 2026 has been
reached at the same time on the Management Board.

There were no personnel changes on the Supervisory Board in the reporting period. The
Board continues to consist of Mr. Markus ZolIner (Chairman), Dr. Caspar Freiherr von Schnur-
bein (Deputy Chairman), Prof. Dr. Martina Heigl-Murauer and Mr. Steve Réper — each as rep-
resentatives elected by the shareholders. Thus, in the reporting year, the Supervisory Board
also achieved the female quota of 25% that it had last set itself as a target in February 2025.

®E 00

The Audit Committee has the same members as the Supervisory Board. The Chairwoman of
the committee is Prof. Dr. Heigl-Murauer.

In the fiscal year 2024, the Alzchem Group was able to celebrate some extraordinary suc-
cesses that were widely respected and, not least, honored by the capital market. As a result,
our company is not only stronger than ever before but has also created highly attractive
prospects for the future. This should fill all of our company’s stakeholders with pride. Look-
ing back, however, it is first and foremost the Alzchem employees to whom the Supervisory
Board would like to express its thanks. Equipped with the proverbial “Alzchem spirit”, it is
they who have once again added a great chapter of success to the history of the Alzchem
Group.

Trostberg, February 25, 2025

Markus Zoliner
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Alzchem Group AG
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Alzchem share

DEVELOPMENT OF THE ALZCHEM SHARE

The fiscal year 2024 began for the Alzchem share with a Xe-
tra closing price of EUR 26.20. The high for the year was EUR
63.00 on December 3, 2024, and the low for the year was
EUR 22.70 on February 16, 2024. The Xetra closing price on
December 30, 2024, was EUR 57.00, which corresponds to
a market capitalization of EUR 580.1 million. From the com-
pany’s perspective, the capital market is thus rewarding the
sustained positive business development. Equity analysts
emphasize the broad diversification of the products and
the high innovative strength, which have led to a steadily
growing importance of the specialty chemicals business and
a unique position in numerous high-growth and high-yield
products. In times of crisis, Alzchem has also proven to be a
resilient company that acts with agility and can successfully
adapt to the individual needs of its customers as well as to
social and global developments.

In addition to the significant increase in the value of the
share, it is positive that the analysts at Kepler Cheuvreux
in April 2024 and Montega in February 2025 added the
Alzchem share to their coverage. The latest price target
issued for Alzchem by Kepler Cheuvreux is EUR 73.00, by
Montega EUR 82.00, by Berenberg Bank EUR 73.00, by
Baader Bank EUR 72.00, by Warburg Research EUR 80.00
and by Sphene Capital EUR 74.20.

IMPORTANT EVENTS IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2024

A particular highlight in the fiscal year 2024 was the inclu-
sion of the Alzchem share in the SDAX selection index on
October 2. This makes Alzchem one of the 160 largest and
most liquid listed companies in Germany in terms of free
float market capitalization. The company sees this mile-
stone in particular as the result of the positive and consist-
ent business development in recent years. At the same time,
this confirms that the growth strategy is the right one, with
which Alzchem is seamlessly continuing its success story
and aims to further expand both the interest in the share
and its capital market presence.

On May 7, 2024, the Annual General Meeting approved,
among other things, an increased dividend of EUR 1.20
(previous year: EUR 1.05) per share, equivalent to a payout
to shareholders of EUR 12.2 million (previous year: EUR 10.7
million).

In the fiscal year 2024, the free float was increased to 50.4%
in order to boost the liquidity of the Alzchem share. The
main reasons for this were an OTC sale and a reallocation
by two anchor shareholders. The company welcomes these
measures as well as the continued commitment of the an-
chor shareholders to their investment in Alzchem shares. In
2025, the free float increased further to 62.0% at the end
of February.

®E 00

Alzchem has been conducting a share buyback program
since December 2, 2024. The company will acquire up to
100,000 shares with a volume of up to EUR 6 million over a
maximum period of twelve months. The maximum purchase
price per share will not be more than 10% above or more
than 20% below the share price determined by the opening
auction in Xetra trading on the trading day.

The share buyback program was suspended on December
19, 2024, in order to be able to prepare the annual and con-
solidated financial statements for 2024 on the basis of sta-
ble figures. The program was resumed on January 2, 2025.
Regular updates are provided on the progress of the share
buyback, including on the company’s website.
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Master data Key figures Shareholder
ISIN/WKN DEOOOA2YNT30/A2YNT3 Xetra closing price basis 01/01-12/31/2024 S t r u C t u r e

Stock exchange Price on 01/02 EUR 26.20

L)
symbol ACT Shareholder %
Highest price (12/18) EUR 63.00
10.176.335 ordi b LIVIA Corporate Development SE 22.99

Type and number 75,335 ordinary bearer - oot price (01/04) EUR 22.70
of shares shares with no par value four two na GmbH 15.05

(no-par value shares)  pyice on 12/29 EUR 57.00
Free Float* 61.96

Trading segment Regulated Market (Prime Standard) Total performance +117.6%
L thereof Janus Henderson Group Plc 6.45

Index membership SDAX (since October 2, 2024) Earnings per share EUR 5.31
L thereof Lazard Fréres Gestion SAS 5.1

Designated Sponsor Baader Bank AG, ODDO BHF SE Market capitalization on 12/29 EUR 580.1 million

* As of January 2025. The information on the shareholders is based on the
information provided to us by the shareholders themselves, the information
on the free float is based on Section 2.3 of the “Guide to the DAX Equity
Indices”.

Please note that the free float is reduced by the shares acquired as part of
the current share buyback program and will be adjusted accordingly once
the share buyback program has been completed.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All relevant information on Alzchem's investor relations activities can be found on our website. A quick overview of
important dates is provided in the financial calendar. You will also find facts and figures about Alzchem, in particular
the key financial and segment figures. In addition, our website provides comprehensive details on the Alzchem share,
current presentations, analyst estimates and reports on business development.

@ alzchem.com/en/investor-relations/
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Combined Management Report

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR FROM JANUARY 1 TO DECEMBER 31, 2024

1. PRELIMINARY REMARK

Alzchem Group AG is also combining the Group manage-
ment report and the management report of Alzchem Group
AG for the fiscal year 2024 because most of the statements
apply equally to both the Alzchem Group and Alzchem
Group AG.

The consolidated financial statements of Alzchem Group
AG were prepared in accordance with the IFRS Accounting
Standards (IFRS) as applicable in the EU while the annual fi-
nancial statements of Alzchem Group AG were prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial
Code (HGB) and the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG).
The combined management report was prepared in ac-
cordance with the provisions of the HGB and the German
Accounting Standards (DRS). Statements in this combined
management report that relate exclusively to Alzchem
Group AG are marked accordingly.

The disclosures required in accordance with Section 289a
HGB and Section 315a (1) HGB are listed in Section 8 of this
combined management report audited by the group audi-
tor.

The non-financial (Group) statement (NFS) contained in Sec-
tion 11 of this combined management report in accordance
with Sections 315b and 315c in conjunction with Sections
289c to 289e HGB, including the information contained in
this NFS on compliance with the requirements of Article 8 of

Regulation (EU) 2020/852 for the fiscal year from January 1
to December 31, 2024, which was prepared in partial appli-
cation of the European Sustainability Reporting Standards
(ESRS), has been subjected to a limited assurance engage-
ment by the auditor.

The combined (Group) declaration on corporate govern-
ance pursuant to Sections 289f and 315d of the German
Commercial Code (HGB) contained in Section 9 is also part
of this combined management report. However, this has not
been audited by the Group auditor.

The remuneration report to be prepared in accordance with
Section 162 AktG is not part of the combined management
report. Instead, it is prepared as a separate report, formally
audited by the Group auditor and published in accordance
with statutory requirements.

2. FUNDAMENTALS OF THE
GROUP

21 BUSINESS MODEL

The companies of the Alzchem Group develop, produce
and market a wide range of chemical specialties and of-
fer various services, including as a chemical park operator.
Alzchem'’s networked production structure (“Verbund sys-
tem”) creates an efficient value chain that ranges from basic
products, such as
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metallurgical additives to improve the quality of steel (CAD®
and CalciPro®),

methane reduction additives for liquid manure and biogas
fermentation residues (Eminex®),

fertilizers (Perlka®),

synthesis building blocks for active pharmaceutical ingredi-
ents, including for the production of metformin, a drug for
type 2 diabetes (dicyandiamide (DCD)),

raw materials for pharmaceuticals, high-performance pig-
ments, agrochemicals and biocides (NITRALZ®),

to specialty products for a wide variety of markets, such as
- feed additives (Creamino®),

« dietary supplement based on high-purity creatine
(Creapure®, LIVADUR®, Creavitalis®),

« applications in agriculture, as a propellant for gas genera-
tors (automotive industry) and in defense (guanidine salts/
nitroguanidine),

« growth regulator for agricultural applications (Dormex®),
« for the pharmaceutical and diagnostics market (Bioselect®),

« custom synthesis as contract manufacturing in multi-pur-
pose plants,
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high-performance ceramics in electronic circuit carriers
and in electric vehicles in the automotive industry (Silzot®),
up to

hardeners and accelerators in powder, paste and liquid
form (DYHARD®).

With its product portfolio, the Alzchem Group offers solu-
tions for a wide range of industries:

« HUMAN NUTRITION: The Nutrition division focuses primar-
ily on marketing high-quality Creapure® brand products
as dietary supplements for the sports nutrition industry.
However, creatine monohydrate can also be added to foods
such as dairy products or vegetarian meat substitutes for
healthy nutrition or used as a pharmaceutical application
— for these purposes the product is marketed under the
Creavitalis® brand. The brand LIVADUR® was developed for
the daily use of creatine monohydrate at home to support
healthy muscles at any age.

« ANIMAL NUTRITION: The animal nutrition supplement
Creamino® makes a valuable contribution to livestock farm-
ing by providing animals with additional energy for healthy
growth and saving the breeder feed.

PHARMACEUTICALS AND FINE CHEMICALS: Based on car-
bon, lime and nitrogen, the Alzchem Group has a widely
ramified product family tree (“Verbund system”). This
means that Alzchem produces the most important raw
materials for many specialty chemicals products in its own
plants to the highest quality and is therefore less depend-
ent on external supply chains. At the top of the “Verbund

system”, for example, are high-purity guanidine salts, which
lead to a product such as Bioselect®, which is increasingly
used in the pharmaceutical industry (production of “large
molecules”). Alzchem precursors are used in antibody
and COVID-19 tests as well as in DNA diagnostics in gen-
eral. Guanidine salts also lead to the product nitroguani-
dine, which is used in the field of defense, but also as a gas
generator, for example for airbags and seatbelt tension-
ers. Another application is modern crop protection agents.
The basic products are refined, and a wide variety of fine
chemicals are produced in the multi-purpose plants (cus-
tom manufacturing).

AGRICULTURE: In addition to special fertilizers, such as
Perlka®, and growth regulators, such as Dormex®, for wine
and fruit cultivation, the Alzchem Group’s product range
also includes plant strengthening agents, such as Sitofex®
and the latest product Eminex® for reducing methane and
CO, emissions during slurry storage.

RENEWABLE ENERGIES: With the DYHARD® product range,
the Alzchem Group is active in lightweight construction
(aircraft, automotive) with epoxy resin hot curing agents.
The company also offers a system for curing hydrogen cyl-
inders.

METALLURGY: Alzchem serves two important areas in the
steel industry: hot metal desulphurization and secondary
metallurgy.

SERVICE: As the site operator of two chemical parks, the
Alzchem Group is responsible for the production and dis-
tribution of various infrastructure services.
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The Alzchem Group operates production facilities at four
locations in the south-east Bavarian chemical triangle and
in Sundsvall, Sweden. Alzchem is also represented by its own
sales companies in the strategically important markets of
the USA, China and the UK.

The operating business of the Alzchem Group can be di-
vided along the entire value chain and according to the in-
ternal reporting structure into the three business segments
Specialty Chemicals, Basics & Intermediates and Other &
Holding.

The Specialty Chemicals segment focuses on the production
and sale of high-quality specialty chemical products such as
Creamino®, Creapure®, Bioselect®, DYHARD®, Dormex® and
Nitroguanidine.

The Basics & Intermediates segment comprises the pro-
duction of basic and intermediate products that are either
required as raw materials for the manufacture of specialty
chemicals or are marketed as stand-alone products. The
latter serve a wide range of applications, for example in ag-
riculture, steel production, pharmaceuticals and the auto-
motive industry.

The Other & Holding segment comprises all other activi-
ties that cannot be allocated to the other segments. These
are essentially services relating to the Trostberg and Hart
chemical parks, which Alzchem operates mainly for itself,
but also for third parties. Administrative services are also
allocated to this segment.
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2.2 GROUP STRUCTURE

Alzchem Group AG acts as the parent company of the Alzchem Group and assumes holding
functions for the companies in the Group. The scope of consolidation of the Alzchem Group
included the following companies as of December 31, 2024:

Company Seat Consolidation

Alzchem Group AG Trostberg, Germany Parent company

Alzchem Trostberg GmbH Trostberg, Germany Fully consolidated

Alzchem International GmbH Trostberg, Germany Fully consolidated

Alzchem Stahltechnik GmbH Trostberg, Germany Fully consolidated

Suppliva GmbH Trostberg, Germany Fully consolidated

Alzchem Shanghai Co. Ltd. Shanghai, China Fully consolidated

Alzchem LLC Atlanta, USA Fully consolidated

Nordic Carbide AB Sundsvall, Sweden Fully consolidated

Alzchem Netz GmbH Trostberg, Germany Fully consolidated

Edelife Distributing LLC Atlanta, USA Fully consolidated

Alzchem UK Ltd. Coventry, United Kingdom Fully consolidated

Actegon Energy GmbH Trostberg, Germany Fully consolidated

The complete list of shareholdings in accordance with Section 313 (2) HGB can be found in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Since October 5, 2017, the shares of Alzchem Group AG (WKN: A2YNT3) have been traded on
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in the Prime Standard segment of the Regulated Market. On
October 2, 2024, the company was included in the SDAX selection index of Deutsche Borse
in Frankfurt. This makes Alzchem one of the 160 largest and most liquid listed companies
in Germany in terms of free-float market capitalization, reflecting in particular the positive
business development of recent years.
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2.3 CONTROL SYSTEM

The Group is managed through regular meetings and reports by the respective committees,
bodies and specialist departments. This regularly includes, among other things

« Board meetings are generally held every two weeks,
« Meetings of the management team,
« Coordination of production and technology,

« Coordination of sales and marketing including innovation management, supply chain man-
agement and production,

« Meetings on the management and resource allocation of the Innovation Management
department,

« Liquidity management and financing management (daily, monthly, quarterly).

The management process is accompanied by financial corporate management based on a
consistent, value-oriented system of key figures. The reports, some of which are daily, week-
ly and monthly, include a detailed analysis of the results of all business transactions with cor-
responding catalogs of measures in coordination with the respective process managers. The
key performance indicator catalog for financial corporate management is as follows:

Key figure Calculation

Equity ratio of the Group Equity/total assets

Inventory intensity Inventories/sales

Sales Absolute value
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The calculation is based on monthly, quarterly and annual reports. This ensures that plan/
actual deviations are recognized at an early stage and countermeasures can be taken in
good time. In addition, the following key profitability indicators are used at the level of the
Management Board of the Alzchem Group:

Key figure Calculation

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization

EBITDA margin EBITDA/sales revenue

Internal management and reporting in the Alzchem Group are fundamentally based on the
principles of accounting in accordance with IFRS as described in the IFRS consolidated fi-
nancial statements. With the exception of the Group-related equity ratio, the other key
performance indicators are also used to assess economic success and to measure target
achievement on the basis of the reporting units and segments. The key performance indi-
cator is EBITDA, which is also broken down to the operating units and segments to measure
target achievement.

EBITDA and the corresponding relative indicator, the EBITDA margin, show the operating
profitability independently of the capital structure and investment intensity and enable in-
ternal and external comparison of the business with regard to the cost structure. As depre-
ciation and amortization (scheduled and unscheduled) are not taken into account, it is also a
cash flow-related figure that can therefore also be used as a sales-related cash flow return.

EBITDA is made up of gross profit (sales less direct production costs), selling, general and ad-
ministrative expenses, research and non-capitalized development costs and other operating
income and expenses plus depreciation and amortization.

Insofar as service relationships exist between the segments, these are calculated using the
Group calculation rules and in compliance with transfer price specifications and are not pre-
sented as sales in the respective segment but are consolidated. In addition, the key figure for
inventories is reported and monitored at segment level both in absolute terms and in relation
to sales (inventory intensity).
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2.4 INNOVATION MANAGEMENT, RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT

Alzchem sees innovation management as a key growth driver and therefore invests heavily
in research and development. The main areas of research & development are product, ap-
plication and process development. In product and application development, new products
are researched, and existing products are further developed. Chemical solutions are also
developed for special customer requirements.

In the area of process development, Alzchem concentrates on transferring new findings to
production with the aim of constantly increasing the efficiency of production processes. Sig-
nificant research and development activities relate to the Specialty Chemicals segment at
the Trostberg and Waldkraiburg sites but also support the Basics & Intermediates segment
at the Trostberg, Schalchen, Hart and Sundsvall (Sweden) sites.

There are no significant research and development activities in the Other & Holding segment.

The total costs incurred for research and development activities for product, application and
process development are as follows:

in EUR thousand 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Research and development costs 9,363 9,688 10,788 11,413 guKeRskckE
% of Group sales 2.5% 2.3% 2.0% 2.1% 2.0%

For the Specialty Chemicals segment, expenses in relation to sales for the fiscal year amount-
ed to 2.2% (previous year: 2.6%).

The Basics & Intermediates segment’s expenditure on research and development amounted
to 1.2% of sales in the reporting period (previous year: 1.0%).

In the fiscal year 2024, the Alzchem Group employed a total of 100 people (previous year:
100) in the area of research & development/innovation management.



36 COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT  Annual report 2024 Alzchem Group AG

3. BUSINESS REPORT

Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are shown in EUR thousand. For computational reasons,
rounding differences of + one unit may occur in tables.

3.1 MACROECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY-RELATED
FRAMEWORK CONDITIONS

3.1.1 MACROECONOMIC FRAMEWORK CONDITIONS

For 2024, the Kiel Institute expects global production to increase by 3.2%, as it did in its Sep-
tember forecast. In the third quarter, global economic output increased only slightly more
strongly, having even lost momentum in the spring. Overall, the pace of expansion remained
very moderate - still mainly driven by services. After a noticeable upturn in the first half of
the year, global industrial production recently lost momentum again. It is therefore on a flat
upward trajectory, as is global trade in goods, which picked up noticeably in the spring but
only showed a weak upward trend in the summer months.

The advanced economies showed a slight slowdown in momentum overall. Gross domestic
product grew at a slightly slower pace in the third quarter. Developments in the emerging
markets were mixed. While the increase in production initially slowed noticeably, primarily
due to the weakness in China, this was followed by expansion at an almost unchanged rate
in the third quarter.
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IfW Kiel expects the following growth rates for gross domestic product in 2024 in the regions
that are important for Alzchem:

Region Development of gross domestic product in 2024
World 3.2%
Eurozone 0.8%
United States 2.8%
Japan -0.2%
China 4.9%
Latin America 1.8%

Source: Kiel Economic Reports, World Economy in Winter 2024, December 12, 2024, No. 119 (2024/Q4).

According to the Kiel Institute, the German economy is likely to record a 0.2% decline in
gross domestic product in 2024. With a continued lack of noticeable upward momentum,
only the service sectors are showing a positive trend. In contrast, the manufacturing sector
has been in decline for over a year and was recently well below the pre-pandemic level. The
fact that capacity utilization in industry fell to 76.5%, more than 5 percentage points below
the lows in normal recession phases, is not only due to economic factors but also to a con-
siderable extent to structural factors. One indication of this is, above all, the reduction in
the number of jobs with a moderate increase in short-time working to date. In addition to
increasing competition, particularly from China, there are also location-specific competitive
disadvantages in this country. Considerable uncertainty about the direction of future eco-
nomic policy is also having a negative impact, which is curbing the willingness to invest and
affecting the consumer climate.

Source: Kiel Economic Reports, German Economy in Winter 2024, December 11, 2024, No.
120 (2024/Q4).
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3.1.2 INDUSTRY-RELATED

FRAMEWORK CONDITIONS

DEVELOPMENT OF THE CHEMICAL AND
PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY

2024 was another difficult year for the chemical-pharma-
ceutical industry in Germany. With an increase of 2%, its
production fell short of the more positive hopes that had
their origins in the positive start to the year. Chemical pro-
duction alone increased by 4% in 2024. Even if this means
that the rapid downturn of the past two years has at least
not continued, the situation remains difficult. The average
capacity utilization of production facilities fell from 77% to
75% compared to the previous year and has thus remained
well below the basic value of around 82% generally required
for profitable operations for four years. As a result, the first
plants have been permanently closed in recent months -
and further closures are likely to follow.

Chemicals and pharmaceuticals achieved total sales of EUR
221 bn in 2024, which equates to a decline of 2%. Foreign
business decreased by 1% to EUR 139 billion, while Germany
recorded a decline of 4% to EUR 82 billion. A 2.5% decline in
chemical prices also contributed to this.

In Europe, the weak phase of chemical production that be-
gan in early 2022 continued unchanged with growth of just
2%. In China, chemical production grew by 8% in 2024, while
US chemical production stagnated.

Source: German Chemical Industry Association (VCI), press
release dated December 13, 2024; Henrik Meincke, “Slump
in demand in the global chemicals business continues”,
CHEManager 12/2024

DEVELOPMENT OF THE STEEL INDUSTRY

Despite year-on-year growth of 5% in the first ten months
of 2024 and 15% in October compared to September, crude
steel production in Germany remained well below the long-
term average. Accordingly, the volume of crude steel pro-
duced remained at a very low level.

Source: German Steel Federation; press release from No-
vember 21, 2024

3.2 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

3.2.1 GENERAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE
FISCAL YEAR 2024

The fiscal year 2024 developed very successfully for
Alzchem Group AG. In July, the Management Board raised
its earnings forecasts for the year as a whole due to the
stronger growth in the first half of the year and the shift in
the product mix towards specialty chemicals. All forecasts
were met. With sales growth of 2.5% to EUR 554.2 million,
Alzchem once again succeeded in outperforming the chem-
ical industry. As in the previous year, the consistent focus on
higher-margin specialty chemicals products proved to be a
key success factor. Thanks to a significant increase in sales
(+8.8%), the Specialty Chemicals growth segment was able
to successfully overcompensate for the expected volume
and price-related decline in sales of -9.5% in the Basics &
Intermediates segment. Here, Alzchem continued to con-
sciously avoid low-margin business and the price war with
Asian or Russian competitors.

Within the individual application areas, Human Nutrition
(Creapure®), Animal Nutrition (Creamino®) and Defense (Ni-
troguanidine) performed particularly well. The order situa-
tion for products in the areas of pharmaceuticals (Bioselect®
due to the general trend towards customized, individually
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tailored DNA analyses) and automotive (DYHARD® due to
increasing use in lightweight construction) was also pleas-
ing. The agricultural sector also developed positively with
the fertilizer Perlka® as a result of a significant recovery in
demand. By contrast, the Custom Manufacturing division
(multi-purpose systems), which is significantly influenced by
the general European chemical economy, and the NITRALZ®
business remained challenging due to the persistently
strong price-driven competition from China. Regulatory re-
strictions also had a particularly strong impact in this area.

Thanks in particular to the higher-margin specialty chemi-
cals, Alzchem was able to significantly increase key earnings
figures in the reporting year. Group EBITDA increased at a
disproportionately high rate compared to sales by 29.4% to
EUR 105.3 million, as a result of which the EBITDA margin
climbed from 15.1% to 19.0%. Specialty Chemicals account-
ed for EUR 20.8 million of the EBITDA growth. The Basics
& Intermediates segment also made a contribution to this
positive earnings performance with EUR 1.3 million, achiev-
ing EBITDA growth of 13.6% despite a decline in sales and
thanks to the slightly lower cost level. Consolidated net in-
come for the year rose by 55.9% to EUR 54.2 million com-
pared to the previous year.

As a result of the significant increase in profitability and the
continued strict working capital management, the Alzchem
Group's financial position also continued to develop posi-
tively in the fiscal year 2024. Operating cash flow increased
by EUR 32.5 million or 44.7% compared to the previous year.
Free cash flow climbed significantly by EUR 22.0 million or
42.3% to EUR 74.2 million, although the cash outflow from
investing activities increased from EUR 20.5 million to EUR
31.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents increased signifi-
cantly compared to the previous year’s reporting date from
EUR 11.9 million to EUR 61.5 million.
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3.2.2 COMPREHENSIVE INVESTMENT
DECISIONS FOR ADDITIONAL
GROWTH

In the fiscal year 2024, Alzchem decided to make several
significant investments in order to achieve additional profit-
able growth and further strengthen its own market position.
These include, in particular, two projects in the nitrogua-
nidine area, which reflect the significantly increasing im-
portance of Alzchem’s defense products for industry and
government agencies. Thanks to non-repayable grants that
have already been secured, the largest investment in the
company’s history, totaling around EUR 140 million, can be
carried out largely without additional debt or equity.

Firstly, the existing plants in Germany for the production of
guanidine nitrate, the precursor of nitroguanidine, are to
be modernized and expanded at a cost of around EUR 76
million. Of this, Alzchem will receive EUR 34.4 million from
the EU Commission’s ASAP (“Act in Support of Ammunition
Production”) funding instrument. The first partial payment
of these non-repayable funds was already made in 2024.
On the other hand, nitroguanidine production capacities
in Germany are to be doubled with an additional invest-
ment volume of around EUR 64 million. Significant and also
non-repayable subsidies for this overall investment are be-
ing paid in the joint interest of several customers from the
defense sector.

Alzchem plans to put the new production capacities in
Germany into operation in the second half of 2026 and to
achieve a gradual increase in sales in the upper double-dig-
it million range from 2027 with correspondingly significant
positive earnings contributions. After the first payments for
the project were already made in the fiscal year 2024, the

main cash outflows are expected in the fiscal years 2025
and 2026.

In parallel to the extensive capacity expansions in Germa-
ny, Alzchem is looking for a suitable nitroguanidine produc-
tion site in the USA on the basis of a preliminary agreement
with the US Department of Defense. If successful within the
next two years, the US Department of Defense will provide
a non-refundable investment grant of USD 150 million to
enable Alzchem to build a new nitroguanidine production
facility in the US by the end of 2029. This facility is to be
operated by Alzchem in addition to the facilities in Germany.

In the Human Nutrition segment, another decision was
made to incrementally expand creatine production capacity
in order to meet the continued strong market demand with
the products Creapure®, LIVADUR® and Creavitalis®. This will
be implemented in the first half of 2025 and, in addition to
expanding capacity, will also contribute to a higher degree
of automation.

3.2.3 SALES AND REVENUE

The fiscal year 2024 closed with sales of EUR 554,231 thou-
sand, an increase of EUR 13,582 thousand on the previous
year. Alzchem was thus able to achieve new record sales
despite deliberately accepting a decline in volumes, par-
ticularly in the Basics & Intermediates segment. Due to the
significant shift in sales shares towards the Specialty Chem-
icals segment, Alzchem was able to successfully continue its
consistent transformation towards higher-margin specialty
chemicals. While sales in the Specialty Chemicals segment
increased by EUR 28,287 thousand to EUR 348,089 thou-
sand, they fell in the Basics & Intermediates segment to
EUR 174,003 thousand (EUR -18,180 thousand). The Other &
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Holding segment was up on the previous year at EUR 32,140
thousand (EUR 3,476 thousand).

Looking at the Group as a whole, the growth in sales com-
pared to the previous year is primarily due to volume ef-
fects:

CHANGE IN SALES COMPARED TO PREVIOUS YEAR

Sales 2023 EUR thousand 540,649 _
Volume %
Currency %

Sales 2024 EUR thousand 554,231 _

The situation in the individual segments must be viewed
in a differentiated manner. While the Specialty Chemicals
segment recorded positive volume and price effects, the
decline in sales in the Basics & Intermediates segment re-
sulted, as expected, from a combination of negative vol-
ume and price effects. Here, Alzchem deliberately accepted
the decline in volumes if the market did not allow profit-
able pricing and at the same time there was no negative
impact on “Verbund production”. Price declines resulted in
particular from the reduced cost level for energy and other
key raw materials, which meant that cost reductions could
be passed on to customers in some product areas - with-
out negatively impacting Alzchem's profitability. This is dis-
cussed in more detail in the discussion of sales development
in the individual segments in section 3.2.5.1.
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3.2.4 PURCHASING AND PRODUCTION

The situation for Alzchem’s purchasing department stabi-
lized further in the past fiscal year. Global supply bottle-
necks have decreased significantly since 2021 compared to
developments in previous years. The weakness of national
and global industrial activity led to a decline in global de-
mand and increased competition among suppliers. As a
result of the low capacity utilization, delivery times have
decreased overall and contributed to a stabilization of the
supply situation. The prices of the most important raw ma-
terials for Alzchem moved in both directions. There were no
extreme price fluctuations for any raw material in the past
fiscal year. Overall, it can be stated that the price level fell
slightly compared to the previous year. Here too, the weak-
ening global industrial activity and increasing competition
among suppliers played a key role. However, the prices of
key raw materials were still above the level seen before the
start of the war in Ukraine in 2022.

The availability of logistics has improved overall compared
to previous years. As a result, inventories could be deliv-
ered more quickly and on time. Nevertheless, the increasing
geopolitical tensions pose a growing challenge. In the past
fiscal year, the conflicts in the Red Sea region in particular
led to disruptions and detour of trade routes. As a result,
transportation costs to and from Asia rose considerably. In
addition, transit and security stocks increased as a result of
the longer transportation times.

With regard to electricity procurement, Alzchem has ad-
hered to the strategy defined for the German sites since the
end of 2022 that electricity will no longer be purchased for-
ward one to two years in advance, as Alzchem believes that
the currently traded forward prices are subject to too much
fluctuation and turbulence. The experience of past fiscal
years has shown that spot purchases currently offer more
favorable prices than the previously traded forward prices
for the same period. However, this is at the expense of the

predictability of results and does not limit the risk of sharp
fluctuations in electricity prices. In the past fiscal year, the
increase in renewable energies in particular led to signif-
icant fluctuations, both seasonally and on an hourly basis
within individual days. Renewable energies such as wind and
solar energy are dependent on the weather and are there-
fore not always constantly available. This volatility has led
to fluctuations in electricity generation, which in turn has
affected electricity prices. In addition, the expansion of re-
newable energies requires considerable investment in new
plants and the modernization of the electricity grid, which
has led to a further increase in grid fees compared to pre-
vious years.

Overall, Alzchem has found a good mix in order not to buy
electricity too far in advance, but still to ensure a certain
amount of short-term risk hedging. Currently, electricity is
purchased two to a maximum of three months in advance
if the traded prices appear reasonable. Purchases are only
made after consultation with the sales and production de-
partments. This allows us to forecast exactly which orders
have already been fixed and included in production plan-
ning.

In addition to this pricing strategy, Alzchem in Germany
uses the concept of electricity price-optimized furnace op-
eration to reduce electricity costs. Alzchem’s largest elec-
tricity consumers are the two carbide furnaces at the Hart
site. The concept of electricity price-optimized furnace op-
eration involves downgrading or switching off the carbide
furnaces when electricity is most expensive and producing
at high pressure when electricity is cheapest. In the morn-
ings and evenings, the power supply to the carbide furnac-
es is adjusted as much as possible without affecting the
quality of the production process. Furthermore, production
is carried out in both carbide furnaces during the warmer
months of the year, while one of the two carbide furnaces
is taken out of production during the colder months when
electricity prices are usually higher. In addition, a process
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was established in the past fiscal year to reduce electric-
ity consumption at short notice on days when electricity
prices are significantly higher. With a lead time of two to
three days, cyclical and weather-dependent changes are
forecast in advance, allowing strong price swings to be rec-
ognized reliably and early on an hourly basis. In coordina-
tion with production, any necessary maintenance measures
are scheduled to the hour for periods of particularly high
electricity prices and the amount of electricity purchased
on the spot market is reduced at an early stage. This al-
lows Alzchem to optimize electricity consumption, store the
cheap electricity in the carbide stock and continue to sup-
ply the production network with carbide in times of higher
electricity prices.

However, in order to meet energy relief requirements, the
7,000 h rule regarding continuous power consumption must
be observed despite all flexibility.

With the flexibility of the furnace operation, Alzchem also
contributes to stabilizing the electricity grids. On May 22,
2024, the new market-based instrument “real-time sys-
tem service product from interruptible loads” (SEAL) was
launched. SEAL comprises services aimed at ensuring the
stability and reliability of the electricity grid by quickly
switching off loads (electrical consumers) when required.
These measures are particularly important to balance fluc-
tuations in electricity supply and demand and to keep the
grid frequency within permissible limits. Alzchem has quali-
fied both carbide furnaces for participation in this program,
making a significant contribution to grid stability.

Alzchem'’s production had to be managed very flexibly in
the past fiscal year. On the one hand, the special focus on
optimizing furnace operation in line with the grid and elec-
tricity price requires a high degree of flexibility throughout
the entire Alzchem production chain. On the other hand, the
deliberate avoidance of volume sales with negative margins
resulted in some very short-term volume reductions. At the
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same time, the production of nitroguanidine, Creamino® and Creapure® was increased, and
the production facilities were largely operated at full capacity. Employees had to help out
in other plants at short notice, in order to meet demand there. This flexibility characterizes
Alzchem and its employees in particular. We would like to thank the employees in production,
technology and the service departments for their outstanding flexibility.

Other production facilities also faced challenges, particularly with regard to production
schedules. After volumes were postponed or not called off at short notice, Alzchem brought
forward any planned maintenance shutdowns as far as possible. At other plants, which were
producing at full capacity, the technically necessary maintenance shutdowns were carried
out in record time in a multi-shift system in order to be ready for production again quickly.
In addition, the employees in engineering and production always endeavored to increase
the capacities of the plants beyond the previously planned level by permanently increasing
efficiency and thus being able to meet the increased demand. This flexibility and constant
striving for efficiency improvements are also a core element and strength of Alzchem.

The production team was also able to successfully master all imponderables in the fiscal year
2024. Over the course of the year and across Alzchem as a whole, the plants were predomi-
nantly operated at a satisfactory level of capacity utilization.
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3.2.5 NET ASSETS, FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS
3.2.5.1 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
in EUR thousand 2022 2023 m
Sales revenue 542,223 540,649
Change in finished and unfinished goods 22,193 -3,804
Other operating income 24,177 13,857
Cost of materials -288,877 -225,145
Personnel expenses -137,139 -145,637
Other operating expenses -101,136 -98,547
EBITDA 61,441 81,373
Depreciation and amortization -25,543 -25,900
EBIT 35,898 55,473
Other interest and similar income 8,421 382
Interest and similar expenses -3,037 -7,666
- thereof non-cash -1,393 -4,457
Financial result 5,384 -7,284
Result from ordinary business activities 41,282 48,189
Taxes on income and profit -11,059 -13,397
Consolidated annual result 30,223 34,792
thereof non-controlling interests 171 171 171
;hgreof interests of shareholders of Alzchem Group 30,052 34,621
Earnings per share in EUR (undiluted and diluted) * 2.96 3.40 5.31

* After the transfer of shares to employees in 2023, calculated with the average number of outstanding shares: in the period 01/01-12/31/2023 with 10,169,572
shares. In the entire period of 2024 calculated with 10,174,204 shares.
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In the fiscal year 2024, the Group generated revenue of EUR 554,231 thousand, which rep-
resents an increase of EUR 13,582 thousand or 2.5% compared to the previous year (EUR
540,649 thousand). Revenue development compared to the previous year can be presented

as follows, taking into account the factors of volume, price and currency
2023 2024

in EUR thousand 2022

Sales of the previous year 422,293 542,223
Volume effect in % -2.59 -9.16 -
Price effect in % 27.57 9.38
Currency effect in % 3.42 -0.52 -

Sales of the fiscal year 542,223 540,649

The sales performance in the fiscal year 2024 shows a differentiated picture in the various
segments. In the Basics & Intermediates segment, there was a decline in sales of EUR 18,180
thousand, which is attributable to volume and price formula-related factors. In contrast, the
Specialty Chemicals segment once again recorded significant growth of EUR 28,287 thou-
sand, which in total exceeded the decline in sales in the Basics & Intermediates segment. The
Other & Holding segment recorded an increase in sales of EUR 3,476 thousand compared to
the previous year. A detailed analysis of the main factors influencing the sales trend is pro-
vided in the segment reporting.
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The breakdown of sales by global regions and economic areas is as follows:

in EUR thousand 2022

Germany 145,826 152,130
European Union (excluding Germany) 173,886 173,404
Rest of Europe 25,573 28,309
NAFTA 83,914 94,661
Asia 62,487 39,789
Rest of the world 50,537 52,355
Total 542,223 540,649

Compared to the previous year, sales increased in almost all of the regions mentioned above.
Only in the “Rest of Europe” and “NAFTA" regions was no sales growth recorded.

In Germany, sales growth was mainly achieved in the defense technology segment with ni-
troguanidine.

Sales development in the European Union showed a varied picture for the various product ar-
eas. Strong increases were achieved in the defense sector with nitroguanidine, in agriculture
with the product Perlka® and in the human nutrition sector with the product Creapure®. By
contrast, sales in the Metallurgy segment fell due to lower volumes and prices.

The Rest of Europe region remained almost stable at the previous year's level. While Creapure®
and Creamino® were able to grow here, sales of some products in the multi-purpose systems
were down on the previous year.

Sales in the NAFTA region were down on the previous year. In this region, Creapure® sales
increased, while sales revenue for DCD was down on the previous year.

The increase in sales in Asia was primarily due to higher sales with Creamino®.

In the “Rest of the World” region, sales development was largely characterized by products
from the Specialty Chemicals segment. The biggest sales drivers here were the Human and
Animal Nutrition divisions with Creapure® and Creamino®.
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In the fiscal year 2024, Alzchem generated other operating income of EUR 17,301 thousand,
which was EUR 3,444 thousand higher than in the previous year. The largest change com-
pared to the previous fiscal year resulted from the increase in own work capitalized in con-
nection with the increased investment activity.

The cost of materials amounting to EUR 195,663 thousand comprises the cost of raw materi-
als and supplies consumed in the production process. The changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress led to a reduction in inventories of EUR 5,317 thousand. The
"extended cost of materials ratio” ((cost of materials - increase in inventories + reduction in
inventories) / sales) fell from 42% to 36% compared to the previous year. The reduction is
primarily due to the increase in sales in the Specialty Chemicals division, where production is
less energy and raw material intensive and therefore involves a lower proportion of materials.
In addition, the slight decrease in electricity and raw material costs had a positive effect on
the cost of materials ratio.

Personnel expenses for the fiscal year 2024 amounted to EUR 160,499 thousand, an increase
of 10% compared to the previous year. The reasons for this are collectively agreed increases
(1st increase of 3.25% effective January 1, 2024, and 2nd increase of 2.00% effective Sep-
tember 1, 2024), an increase in personnel of 33 full-time equivalents on average during the
fiscal year and higher expenses for earnings-related wage and salary components due to
the significantly improved earnings situation and the positive share price performance of
Alzchem. Due to the disproportionately strong increase in personnel expenses compared to
sales, the personnel expenses ratio rose slightly from 27% in the same period of the previous
year to 29% in the reporting period.
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The number of employees at Alzchem developed as follows:

Employees* 2017 20182 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Commercial workers 766 802 821 818 818 850 857

Employees 610 635 677 679 683 698 700

Trainees 115 125 125 134 135 129 1
Total employees 1,491 1,562 1,623 1,631 1,636 1,677 1,689 Wi
Change 1.5% 24% 4.0% 0.5% 0.3% 2.5% 0.7%

1 Employees = average calculation of employees at the end of the last four quarters prior to the respective reporting date, including those abroad
2 Figures for 2018 as a whole are unaudited and are the sum of the two audited short fiscal years 2018/l and 2018/II.

Other operating expenses amounted to EUR 104,785 thousand in the fiscal year 2024, up EUR
6,238 thousand on the previous year. This corresponds to an increase of 6%, which is mainly
due to business growth. In addition to the increase in disposal costs due to higher production
volumes in the specialty chemicals segment, the costs for purchased external services and
maintenance also increased.

EBITDA increased significantly by EUR 23,895 thousand to EUR 105,268 thousand. The main
reason for this increase was the growth in sales in the Specialty Chemicals segment, which is
characterized by a higher EBITDA margin. A slightly lower cost level in the Basics & Interme-
diates segment also contributed to the positive development. The EBITDA margin was 19%
in the reporting period and therefore significantly higher than the in the same period of the
previous year.
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Depreciation and amortization are as follows:

in EUR thousand 2022 2023
Amortization of intangible assets 731 738 96
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 22,735 23,208 23,432
Depreciation of own assets 23,465 23,946
Amortization of lease usage rights 2,078 1,954 1,922
Total depreciation and amortization 25,543 25,900 26,318

In total, depreciation and amortization amounting to EUR 26,318 thousand was recorded in
the Group. This was slightly above the previous year’s level.

The financial result improved significantly compared to the same period of the previous year
to EUR -3,607 thousand (previous year: EUR -7,284 thousand). Thanks to the positive liquidity
situation, interest income was generated from short-term time deposits of excess liquidity.
On the other hand, interest expenses were reduced due to the lower use of factoring . In
addition, the financial result improved due to a better result from interest on long-term pro-
visions in the personnel area and for landfill provisions.

Tax expenses amounted to EUR 21,097 thousand after EUR 13,397 thousand in the previous
year. The effective Group tax rate therefore amounted to 28.0% (previous year: 27.8%). This
includes current tax expenses of EUR 20,120 thousand (previous year: EUR 15,108 thousand)
and deferred tax expenses of EUR 977 thousand (previous year: deferred tax income of EUR
1,710 thousand). The actual tax expense increased in particular due to the significant rise in
earnings before taxes.

Consolidated annual result for the fiscal year 2024 amounted to EUR 54,246 thousand (pre-
vious year: EUR 34,792 thousand), an increase of EUR 19,454 thousand.

The increase in consolidated result for the period also improved earnings per share, which
amounted to EUR 5.31 in the reporting period. This represents an increase EUR 1.91 or 56%
compared to the previous year. Earnings per share were calculated using a weighted average
number of shares in circulation of 10,174,204 in the fiscal year 2024 and 10,169,572 in the fis-
cal year 2023. Although the weighted average number of shares in circulation has increased
compared to the previous year, earnings per share are higher than in the previous year.
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3.2.5.1.1 DEVELOPMENT IN THE SEGMENTS
3.2.5.1.1.1 SPECIALTY CHEMICALS SEGMENT

2023 2024 Change

KEY FIGURES FOR THE SEGMENT

in EUR thousand 2022

External sales 288,361 319,802 348,089 +8.8%
EBITDA 53,014 73,243 94,017 +28.4%
Inventories 68,535 55,998
Inventory intensity 23.8% 17.5% 17.0% -0.5 percentage points

The Specialty Chemicals segment remains Alzchem'’s growth driver and was able to signif-
icantly increase sales as well as EBITDA and the EBITDA margin compared to the previous
year. This further increased the importance of the segment for Alzchem. The segment’s share
of sales amounted to 63% (previous year: 59%) and the segment contributed 89% (previous
year: 90%) to EBITDA.

Segment sales amounted to EUR 348,089 thousand, up EUR 28,287 thousand (9%) on the
previous year. The Specialty Chemicals segment thus continued to grow unabated. The in-
crease in sales resulted from a combination of positive volume and price effects. Most prod-
uct areas contributed to this sales growth, albeit to varying degrees.

The guanidine salts product area, in particular nitroguanidine, accounted for a significant
share of revenue growth in the fiscal year 2024. The increase in sales is attributable to both
volume and price effects. The shift in sales from applications in the agrochemical and au-
tomotive industries to the defense sector continued seamlessly. In October 2024, Alzchem
approved an extensive investment program to double capacity in order to meet the further
increase in demand, as described at the beginning (for more details, see section 3.2.2.).

The Human Nutrition product area also performed well. Demand for creatine “Made in Ger-
many” has increased further compared to the previous year. Alzchem has created a differ-
entiating feature here and has established a strong market position with Creapure® through
a clear branding strategy. In addition to Creapure®, a second brand, Creavitalis®, has been
established in the food & health sector in order to reach additional target groups in addition
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to the sports sector. The current development in the global
creatine market offers Alzchem additional growth potential
in new areas of application. Against this backdrop, the com-
pany is working on a further expansion of production ca-
pacities with increasing automation. To further strengthen
the Creapure® brand, sponsorship in the professional sports
sector was driven forward. To this end, Alzchem entered
into partnerships with FC Bayern Basketball and the Munich
Ravens football team. This is intended to emphasize the im-
portance of sports-oriented supplementation and perfor-
mance enhancement and further increase the visibility of
the Creapure® brand.

The Animal Nutrition product area also showed a stable
growth trend. Here, the Creamino® brand achieved volume
and therefore sales growth despite the intensely competi-
tive price situation. The further expansion of sales activities
in all key global markets is paying off and will continue to be
systematically pursued.

There was also a positive sales trend in the automotive (DY-
HARD®) and pharmaceutical (Bioselect®) sectors. With prod-
ucts under the DYHARD® brand, Alzchem offers a versatile
product range that plays an important role in lightweight
construction in particular and is increasingly being used in
automotive manufacturing. The aim of reducing the weight
of vehicles is to significantly reduce fuel consumption, CO,
emissions and the proportion of steel. Due to the increased
demand from the automotive sector, DYHARD® was able to
achieve a significant increase in volume. In the pharmaceu-
ticals sector, Alzchem is benefiting from the general trend

towards the increasing importance of customized, individu-
ally tailored DNA analyses. Among other things, Alzchem has
established itself with Bioselect® products for the detection
and investigation of cancer and has helped to significantly
improve both the accuracy and efficiency of cancer diag-
nostics. Strong sales growth was achieved here compared
to the previous year.

In contrast, Custom Manufacturing of multi-purpose plants
recorded a significant decline in sales, as expected. In this
area, Alzchem was unable to completely escape the ongoing
negative developments in the chemical industry in Germany
and Europe. The customers are mostly large companies in
the chemical industry that have Alzchem manufacture spe-
cific products for them in small quantities per recipe. These
customers are currently facing declining volumes. Alzchem
continues to regard this as a temporary phase and there-
fore as an opportunity for the future, as the plants are well
diversified and can therefore serve a wide range of prod-
ucts. This diversification has historically proven to be very
valuable and crisis-resistant.

Sales in the agricultural product area (Dormex®) did not
quite reach the previous year's level. There is considerable
price competition with Asian competitors in this area, which
is why a decline in sales was recorded. However, customers
particularly appreciate the quality and delivery capability of
Alzchem, which ensures the supply of fresh fruit in Europe
and not least in the USA. As a result, Alzchem is still largely
able to defend its good position in the market.
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The segment’s EBITDA also increased disproportionately
strongly compared to revenue, rising to EUR 94,017 thou-
sand in the fiscal year 2024, up EUR 20,774 thousand (28%)
on the previous year. As a result, the EBITDA margin in-
creased significantly year-on-year from 22.9% to 27.0%.
The increase in profitability shows that Alzchem has estab-
lished a strong position in the market for the products in
the Specialty Chemicals segment. For the individual product
areas, it should be noted that the comments on sales devel-
opment also apply to the development of EBITDA. The con-
sistent, increasing focus on specialty chemicals products is
making a significant contribution to earnings growth. In ad-
dition, the development of the Specialty Chemicals segment
also demonstrates the advantages of the “Verbund system”,
which ensures a reliable supply of high-quality raw materi-
als. This distinguishes Alzchem from competitors who are
much more dependent on external sources for the supply
of raw materials.

The segment’s inventories amounted to EUR 59,074 thou-
sand, up EUR 3,076 thousand on the previous year. The in-
crease is mainly due to the increased business activity in the
segment. Thanks to active working capital management, it
was possible to prevent inventories from increasing at the
same rate as sales. The overall improvement in logistics
availability also made it possible to reduce safety buffers in
purchasing and sales and to deliver inventories more quickly
and on time.
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3.2.5.1.1.2 SEGMENT BASICS & INTERMEDIATES

2023 2024 Change

KEY FIGURES FOR THE SEGMENT
in EUR thousand 2022

External sales 227,539 192,183 174,003 -9.5%
EBITDA 4,983 9,631 10,825 +13.6%
EBITDA margin 2.2% 5.0% 6.2% +1.2 percentage point
Inventories 49,945 49,139 _
Inventory intensity 22.0% 25.6% 24.1%  -1.5 percentage points

The Basics & Intermediates segment recorded a year-on-year decline in sales of EUR 18,180
thousand to EUR 174,003 thousand (-9.5%). Nevertheless, the segment’s profitability in-
creased - EBITDA rose by EUR 1,294 thousand to EUR 10,825 thousand, reflecting the effects
of the earnings-optimized pricing strategy. Alzchem has decided to consciously accept lower
sales volumes in favor of economically viable sales prices if the market does not permit prof-
itable pricing and this does not have a negative impact on “Verbund production”. In addition
to external sales, some of the segment’s production facilities also pass on their products as
raw materials to downstream product areas. For this reason, consideration was always given
to the entire production chain of the production network in order to maintain the production
and supply capability of the downstream product areas.

The decline in sales is due to a combination of price and volume effects. Overall, the fall in
costs for energy and other key raw materials in particular meant that sales prices could be
reduced through price escalation clauses and cost reductions passed on to customers. The
decline in sales was exacerbated by targeted volume reductions, although the volume trend
must be considered separately for each product area. In general, competition in this seg-
ment is more intense than in the Specialty Chemicals segment. Some products in the Basics
& Intermediates segment are exposed to strong Asian competition, which has significantly
lower energy and CO, costs to process and operates under different (e.g. ESG) framework
conditions than Alzchem. Alzchem cannot and does not want to keep up with the prices of
these competitors, as the company is convinced that they do not allow economically sus-
tainable operations under the existing framework conditions in Germany and Europe. These
companies benefit nationally from significantly lower energy costs and at the same time do
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not have to process the CO, costs included in every energy purchase in Europe. The frame-
work conditions and cost structure are therefore hardly comparable with those of Alzchem.
As a result, some customers are switching to the Asian competition and placing lower volume
orders with Alzchem. It remains to be seen how sustainably the Asian competition can main-
tain this price level.

These effects can be seen when looking at the individual product areas. The NITRALZ® prod-
uct area with applications in the pharmaceutical, agrochemical and basic chemicals industries
faced particularly strong price competition from Asian competitors. Sales fell here compared
to the same period of the previous year as a result of a combination of volume and price re-
ductions. Sales here are primarily realized with customers who place regional supply chains,
delivery reliability, quality and reliable compliance with ESG criteria above short-term cost
effects. In the NITRALZ® area, Alzchem also intends to increasingly move away from stand-
ard applications towards special applications in growth markets in order to gain a significant
competitive advantage over the dumping competition from Asia. Ongoing discussions with
customers in this regard make Alzchem quite positive that this strategy can lead to a trend
reversal.

In the pharmaceutical sector (building block dicyandiamide), in which Alzchem is the only
producer outside Asia, sales were below the previous year's level due to a combination of
volume and price effects. Although European pricing is significantly higher than that of Asian
competitors, Alzchem'’s reliable quality, delivery reliability and speed of delivery represent a
competitive advantage that customers continue to trust - albeit at a reduced level.

In the metallurgy business, sales were significantly below the previous year’s level. In this
area, almost all customer contracts have now been converted to price escalation clauses,
through which the lower energy and raw material costs compared to the previous year are
also taken into account in pricing. Alzchem continues to be dependent on the economic situ-
ation in the European steel industry, which has led to reduced customer call-offs.

The development in the agricultural sector with the fertilizer Perlka® should be highlighted
on a positive note. Thanks to a significant recovery in demand, sales increased considera-
bly. Due to the product’s greater specialization in crops with high added value, customers
are prepared to pay a certain premium over cheaper alternatives. Natural gas-based prod-
ucts from Russia in particular are still available at much lower prices, as imports of (natural
gas-based) fertilizers are still not subject to an EU embargo. The global increase in sales of
Eminex® is also positive. Alzchem sees great potential for this product in the future if regu-
latory CO, pricing reaches agriculture or if more and more producers focus on sustainability
aspects in agriculture in addition to animal welfare.
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Segment EBITDA was decoupled from the decline in sales and increased by EUR 1,294 thou-
sand to EUR 10,825 thousand. The EBITDA margin was 6.2% and therefore higher than the
previous year's figure of 5.0%. It is clear that volume is not the only decisive factor if it does
not have a negative impact on the optimal production structure. For the individual product
areas, it should be noted that the comments on the development of sales also apply to the
development of EBITDA

Inventories in the Basics & Intermediates segment amounted to EUR 41,912 thousand, down
EUR 7,227 thousand on the previous year. In addition to the business activities in the seg-
ment, the significant decline was mainly due to active working capital management. Thanks
to the overall improvement in logistics availability, safety buffers in purchasing and sales
were reduced, and inventories were delivered more quickly and on time. In addition, the
slightly lower overall price level for key raw materials led to a reduction in inventories.

3.2.5.1.1.3 OTHER & HOLDING SEGMENT

2023 2024 Change

KEY FIGURES FOR THE SEGMENT

in EUR thousand 2022

External sales 26,323 28,664 32,140 +12.1%
EBITDA 1,959 463 1.788 +286.4%
EBITDA margin 7.4% 1.6% 5.6% +4.0 percentage poi
Inventories 4,164 4,377 4,487 T %
Inventory intensity 15.8% 15.3% 14.0% -1.3 percentage points

Sales in the Other & Holding segment were up on the previous year (EUR +3,476 thousand),
which is mainly to the passing on of increased grid fees from upstream grid operators. The
services used were primarily of a variable nature (energy supply, technical services and grid
operation) and included the usual price increases. At EUR 1,788 thousand, the segment’s
EBITDA was also EUR 1,325 thousand higher than in the previous year.

Segment inventories remained largely stable at EUR 4,487 thousand compared to EUR 4,377
thousand in the previous year.
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3.2.5.2 FINANCIAL POSITION
3.2.5.2.1 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

When selecting financial instruments, the focus is on financing with matching maturities,
which is achieved by managing maturities. The fiscal year 2024 was characterized by a strong
cash flow from operating activities. In the previous year, a refinancing was carried out in
cooperation with Alzchem'’s financing partners, in which short-term financing lines were con-
verted into long-term loans in the amount of EUR 30 million. At the end of 2024, the existing
financing lines committed by banks amounted to EUR 77.5 million, which continues to ensure
a secure and solid financing structure. To cover working capital peaks, Alzchem had an ad-
ditional EUR 40 million available from a factoring program at the end of 2024, which had not
been utilized as of December 31, 2024.

As of December 31, 2024, the financing of the Alzchem Group is as follows

in EUR thousand 2023
Long-term loans (including their current portion) 57,498 48,665
Utilization of short-term financing lines 0
Freely available short-term financing lines 87,500 77,500

In connection with a reorganization in the area of the banks supporting Alzchem, the freely
available financing line was reduced by EUR 10 million. With this financing structure, Alzchem
considers itself well positioned for further growth.
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3.2.5.2.2 INVESTMENTS

While investment activity was more restrained in the fiscal
year 2023 due to the uncertain business environment, in-
vestments increased in the fiscal year 2024. In the first half
of 2024, investments were made primarily in the completion
of the photovoltaic park at the Trostberg site, the expan-
sion of creatine capacities and in infrastructure measures.
In the second half of the year, work began on expanding
capacities for nitroguanidine and renewing or expanding
the existing facilities for the production of guanidine nitrate.
Cash outflows from investing activities totaled EUR 30,994
thousand and were therefore EUR 10,447 thousand higher
than in the previous year. This cash outflow was reduced by
a non-repayable investment grant of EUR 12.0 million from
the EU Commission.

Due to the strong operating cash flow, free cash flow also
improved significantly compared to the previous year. After
deducting cash flow from investing activities, free cash flow
amounted to EUR 74,153 thousand, which corresponds to an
increase of EUR 22,030 thousand compared to the previous
year.

Due to the network structure and the resulting interlinking
of the infrastructure and investment structure, segment-re-
lated information on investments is not provided, as this is
not meaningful and is not part of internal reporting.

3.2.5.2.3 LIQUIDITY

Within the Alzchem Group, Alzchem Trostberg GmbH as-
sumes the Group's internal financing function and ensures
the short-term liquidity of the subsidiaries through a cash
pooling system.

The non-current loan liabilities currently reported result
from loans taken out to finance investments in the fiscal
years 2017 and 2020. EUR 30 million in non-current loans
were added in the fiscal year 2023 as a result of the suc-
cessful refinancing. This long-term, partly project-related
financing for measures already implemented with a term
of more than one year amounted to EUR 41,082 thousand
as of the reporting date (previous year: EUR 48,665 thou-
sand). The current portion of non-current loan liabilities as
of December 31, 2024, amounted to EUR 7,583 thousand
(previous year: EUR 8,833 thousand) and is reported in the
balance sheet item current loan liabilities to banks. In to-
tal, these loans amounted to EUR 48,665 thousand as of
the reporting date of December 31, 2024 (previous year:
EUR 57,498 thousand). These obligations were serviced as
scheduled in the reporting year and the previous year.

In addition, short-term financing lines (money market loans,
overdraft facilities and guarantee facilities) totaling EUR
77,500 thousand (previous year: EUR 87,500 thousand)
were agreed with several banks. As in the previous year, no
financing lines were utilized as of the reporting date. In the
fiscal year 2023, short-term financing lines utilized in excess
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of the refinancing were repaid in the amount of EUR 56,353
thousand.

The company also uses factoring as a means of financing.
Around (previous year: ) of the available financing frame-
work of EUR 40,000 thousand (previous year: EUR 40,000
thousand) was utilized on average in the fiscal year 2024.
The loan and credit agreements contain the usual covenants
on the capital market. There is no discernible impairment of
these covenants in the medium-term planning. Liquidity was
guaranteed at all times thanks to the expanded existing fi-
nancing instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to EUR 61,544 thou-
sand as of the reporting date of December 31, 2024 (De-
cember 31, 2023: EUR 11,883 thousand). The collateral
provided to the government of Upper Bavaria for the op-
eration of its own landfills in the amount of EUR 5,902 thou-
sand (December 31, 2023: EUR 5,902 thousand) is reported
as other current assets due to the fixed-term investment
of more than three months. These are funds that are fully
restricted but may be invested for a maximum period of one
year in accordance with the rules on restrictions on disposal.

Taking into account cash and cash equivalents and existing
loan liabilities, net debt was completely reduced compared
to the previous year (December 31, 2023: EUR 45,615 thou-
sand). As of the balance sheet date, Alzchem had net finan-
cial assets of EUR 12,873 thousand.
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The change in cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

in EUR thousand 2022 2023

Cash and cash equivalents on January 1 8,285 9,243 11,883
Cash outflow (-) / inflow (+) from operating activities -4,240 72,671 10

Cash outflow from investing activities -28,511 -20,548 -30,994
Cash outflow (-) / inflow (+) from financing activities 33,647 -49,166 -24,656
Change in cash and cash equivalents 896 2,957 49,497
(Ee);i?:ar:gitzate—related changes in the cash and cash 62 -317 164
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 9,243 11,883 61,544

The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method.

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2024, amounted to EUR 61,544 thousand (De-
cember 31, 2023: EUR 11,883 thousand) and comprised immediately available bank balances,
cheques and cash in hand

A clearly positive cash inflow from operating activities was generated in the fiscal year 2024.
This amounted to EUR 105,147 thousand and was therefore significantly higher (EUR +32,476
thousand) than in the previous year. The increase was mainly due to the positive business
performance. Net working capital had a slightly negative impact on operating cash flow in
2024. The strong cash flow reduced the sale of receivables. On the one hand, this had a
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positive effect on cash flow, as less interest had to be paid, and on the other hand it had a
negative effect on net working capital, as the nominal amount of receivables reported in-
creased compared to the previous year's reporting date. Inventories in the fiscal year 2024
were below the previous year’s level.

The cash outflow from investing activities in the fiscal year 2024 consisted of investments
of EUR 43,101 thousand (previous year: EUR 20,557 thousand), proceeds in connection with
the disposal of non-current assets of EUR 61 thousand (previous year: EUR 9 thousand) and
proceeds in connection with the EU grant of EUR 12,046 thousand (previous year: EUR O
thousand). The most significant investments are described in section 3.2.5.2.2 Investments.

Alzchem's financing activities led to a cash outflow of EUR 24,656 thousand in the fiscal year
2024 (previous year: EUR 49,166 thousand). In the previous year, a refinancing was carried
out, which resulted in the outflow of short-term financing lines and, conversely, an inflow of
long-term financing in the amount of EUR 30 million. In addition to the refinancing, further
short-term financing lines were repaid in the previous year, resulting in a total cash outflow
of EUR 56,353 thousand for the repayment of short-term financing lines. In the current re-
porting period, it was not necessary to make use of short-term financing lines or factoring
due to the strong cash flow. Loan and lease liabilities were repaid as scheduled in the amount
of EUR 10,761 thousand (previous year: EUR 11,957 thousand). In May 2024, a dividend of EUR
12,212 thousand (previous year: EUR 10,685 thousand) was paid out to shareholders. As in the
previous year, profit entitlements of EUR 171 thousand were paid to non-controlling interests.
In addition, EUR 1,512 thousand was paid out for the share buyback program in the fiscal year
2024.
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3.2.5.3  NET ASSETS
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12/31/2023 12/31/2024

Share EUR thousand Share

1% 3,671 1%

42% 192,976 40%

1% 4,023 1%

<1% 6 <1%

<1% 1,234 <1%

5% 20,121 4%

49% 222,031 46%

25% 101,166 21%

18% 78,935 16%

0% 0 0%

5% 20,080 4%

1% 70 <1%

3% 61,544 13%

51% 261,795 54%

100% 483,826 100%

(@)
~

N
=

43%

170,956 35%

105,399 22%

12/31/2022

EUR thousand Share EUR thousand
Assets
Intangible assets 2,954 1% 3,664
Property, plant and equipment 181,526 43% 177,281
Lease usage rights 6,250 1% 4,855
Financial assets 6 <1% 6
Other receivables and other assets 1,531 <1% 1,369
Deferred tax assets 15,956 4% 20,921
Non-current assets 208,223 49% 208,096
Inventories 122,404 29% 107,478
Trade receivables 55,712 13% 75,212
Financial assets 5,228 1% 0]
Other receivables and other assets 19,743 5% 19,239
Income tax assets 2,307 1% 2,769
Cash and cash equivalents 9,243 2% 11,883
Total current assets 214,637 51% 216,581
Total assets 422,860 100% 424,677
Capital
Equity 145,946 35% 163,559 39%
Non-current liabilities 144,808 34% 178,487 42%
Current liabilities 132,106 31% 82,631 19%
Balance sheet total 422,860 100% 424,677 100%

483,826 100%
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As of December 31, 2024, Alzchem'’s total assets amounted to EUR 483,826 thousand, an in-
crease of EUR 59,149 thousand compared to December 31, 2023. Both current and non-cur-
rent assets have increased. Non-current assets amounted to EUR 222,031 thousand, which
corresponds to an increase of EUR 13,935 thousand. The reason for the change compared to
the previous year is the increase in investment activity in the past fiscal year

Current assets also increased as of December 31, 2024, and, at EUR 261,795 thousand, were
EUR 45,214 thousand higher than in the previous year. While inventories were down EUR 6,312
thousand on the previous year, trade receivables increased by EUR 3,723 thousand since the
last reporting date. Due to the strong operating cash flow, fewer receivables were sold than
on the previous year’s balance sheet date. Furthermore, there were no significant extensions
of payment terms or bad debts on the part of customers. The average payment terms for
customers at Group level fell slightly to 53 days (previous year: 55 days).

Inventory intensity as a ratio of inventories to sales was 18.3% as of December 31, 2024
(December 31, 2023: 19.9%). In addition to strict working capital management, which aims to
reduce inventories and lower safety buffers in purchasing and sales, the improved availability
of logistics also plays a role.

The Group equity ratio improved significantly to 42.9% as of December 31, 2024 (December
31, 2023: 38.5%). Equity increased by EUR 54,246 thousand (previous year: EUR 34,792 thou-
sand) due to the positive consolidated annual result. The changes in actuarial assumptions,
particularly with regard to the risk-free interest rate for the measurement of pension obliga-
tions, resulted in an increase in equity of EUR 4,689 thousand as of December 31, 2024. By
contrast, the deferred taxes to be recognized in the opposite direction equity by EUR 1,313
thousand, resulting in a total increase in equity of EUR 3,376 thousand due to interest rate
changes alone. The development of pension obligations is significantly influenced by actuari-
al parameters. Although their change does not affect the consolidated result, it is recognized
directly in equity under other comprehensive income. The risk-free market interest rate
plays a key role in the actuarial parameters. If this market interest rate falls, this leads to an
increase in pension obligations, while an increase leads to a decrease in pension obligations.
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The risk-free market interest rate and the other actuarial parameters have developed his-
torically as follows:

in % 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 plrZ]

Discount rate 1.75 190 090 050 100 370 3.20 geEie

Wage and salary trend 275 275 275 250 3.00 3.00 3.00 jgEexele]

Trend contribution limit social

Pension trend 1.75 200 175 150 200 225 2.25
security :

250 250 250 250 250 250 250

Pension provision as of 12/31

in EUR million 107.2 110.0 134.6 141.8 140.0

90.1 100.3

The dividend paid in May 2024 reduced equity by EUR 12,212 thousand (previous year: EUR
10,685 thousand).

The Management Board of Alzchem Group AG has decided, with the approval of the Super-
visory Board, to buy back up to 100,000 shares of the company over a period of up to 12
months from December 2024 at a total purchase price of up to EUR 6 million (excluding inci-
dental acquisition costs) via the stock exchange. The purpose of the buyback is (i) to use the
acquired shares as acquisition currency, (ii) to issue them to employees of the Alzchem Group
or (iii) to cancel the shares. Other legally permissible purposes are not excluded. The buyback
is carried out in accordance with the provisions of the authorization of the Annual General
Meeting 2024 and the Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/1052. As of December 31, 2024, the
company held a total of 25,578 (December 31, 2023: 0) treasury shares.

Alzchem'’s non-current liabilities fell by EUR 7,531 thousand in the course of the fiscal year
2024 and thus amounted to EUR 170,956 thousand as of December 31, 2024. By contrast,
the scheduled repayments of loan and lease liabilities reduced non-current liabilities by EUR
7,583 thousand as a result of the reclassification to current liabilities. Pension obligations fell
in the fiscal year 2024, mainly due to interest rates. The increase in the discount rate from
3.20% to 3.40% led to a decrease in pension obligations of EUR 4,689 thousand. However,
the pension payments that Alzchem makes to former employees also have a decreasing in-
fluence on the development of pension obligations.
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These pension payments have historically developed as follows:

in EUR thousand 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Pensions paid -674 -725 -1,005 -1,181 -1,516 -1,685 -1,930 g@wiss)

No new employees have been included in the pension plan since 2007, as these are old pro-
grams from Alzchem'’s history. Due to the age structure, pension payments were low in the
past but are now slowly increasing as more employees eligible for the plan retire. The plan
is structured so that future pension payments extend over a very long projected period of
several decades and thus do not materially affect Alzchem'’s financial performance.

Current liabilities increased by EUR 22,768 thousand to EUR 105,399 thousand compared to
the previous year’s balance sheet date. In addition to trade payables, income tax liabilities
also increased. In addition to business growth, the trade payables item also saw an increase
in liabilities for planned investments in the area of defense technology. However, the main
reason for the increase in current liabilities is the grant awarded by the EU, which reduces
the acquisition costs in non-current assets after construction progresses and the remaining
amount remains in liabilities.
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3.2.5.4 FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS
3.2.5.4.1 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key figure Unit 2022 2023 2024 Change
Equity ratio of the

Group % 345 38.5 .9 +4.4 percentage points
EBITDA EUR thousand 61,441 81,373 lelswlsr:) +29.4%
EBITDA margin % 11.3 15.1 19.0 +3.9 percentage points
Inventories EUR thousand 122,404 107,478 puKekBuksI3) -5.9%
Inventory intensity % 22.6 19.9 18.3 -1.6 percentage points
Sales EUR thousand 542,223 540,649 geRY:Wickl +2.5%

3.2.5.4.2 NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The non-financial targets of the Alzchem Group are geared towards both the short and long
term and support operational business management as auxiliary indicators. Accordingly, they
are not quantified - also in view of their materiality for the addressees of the annual and con-
solidated financial statements.

SUSTAINABLE CUSTOMER LOYALTY

Alzchem'’s business is characterized by a high repurchase rate from regular customers.
Alzchem endeavors to maintain the customer retention rate at a high level and to further
expand it in individual business areas.

EDUCATION

Personnel development at Alzchem begins with in-company training, among other things.
A considerable proportion of employee requirements is covered by the company’s own in-
house training program. This is reflected in the Alzchem Group’s high training rate of around
9% at its German sites compared to the rest of the industry. Every year, up to 50 apprentic-
es start their training at Alzchem in commercial, metal and electrical engineering as well as
chemical and logistics areas.
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MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The course of business is sustainably geared towards ful-
filling the requirements of the management systems and
certificates listed below. The management systems and cer-
tificates are not non-financial performance indicators in the
narrower sense.

The Group received ISO 27001 and DIN 27019 certifica-
tion for the following reason: The German Federal Network
Agency required public distribution network operators to
implement the requirements under Section 11 (1a) of the
German Energy Industry Act (EnWG) with regard to IT secu-
rity by January 31, 2018. For Alzchem Netz GmbH as a net-
work operator, the introduction of ISO 27001 was therefore
mandatory.

ENVIRONMENT AND ENERGY

Alzchem publishes an annual statement on the environmen-
talimpact of the German production sites, including relevant
key figures on environmental performance, for example re-
source consumption and emission values. The transparency
this creates demonstrates the high value placed on respon-
sible environmental management within the Alzchem Group.

3.2.6 OVERALL STATEMENT ON THE
ECONOMIC SITUATION

The Management Board of Alzchem Group AG is very satis-
fied with the course of business in 2024 and the economic
situation overall. The economic environment was challeng-
ing, but much more stable for Alzchem than in previous
years.

Alzchem achieved record sales in the fiscal year 2024. By
significantly shifting sales shares to the Specialty Chemicals
segment, the company successfully continued its consistent
transformation towards higher-margin specialty chemicals
- despite the difficult business environment in the chemi-
cal industry in Europe. Alzchem consciously accepted the
decline in volumes and associated sales in the Basics & In-
termediates segment when the market did not allow for
profitable pricing. The lower cost level for energy and other
key raw materials also had a sales-reducing effect, which
meant that cost reductions could be passed on to custom-
ers, particularly in the energy- and raw material-intensive
Basics & Intermediates segment, without negatively impact-
ing profitability.

The situation on the energy, raw materials and logistics
markets has calmed down compared to previous years.
The availability of raw materials and logistics has improved.
The price level for energy and key raw materials fell slightly
compared to the previous year but was still above the level
prior to the start of the war in Ukraine at the beginning of
2022. Flexibility was required in production in the fiscal year
2024. Particular attention was paid to grid- and electrici-
ty price-optimized furnace operation with short-term ca-
pacity fluctuations. In addition, the deliberate avoidance of
business with negative margins resulted in relatively short-
term volume reductions. At the same time, some production
plants were largely operated at the limits of their capacity,
which meant that employees had to temporarily help out in
other plants. Allimponderables were successfully overcome.
Alzchem employees once again showed great commitment.
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In addition to Group sales, Alzchem was also able to in-
crease EBITDA and achieve a record result in the past fis-
cal year. EBITDA rose by 29% to EUR 105,268 thousand and
the EBITDA margin increased to 19.0% (+3.9 percentage
points). This pleasing development illustrates the success of
the strategic measures to achieve steady profitable growth.

Consolidated annual result for the fiscal year 2024 amount-
ed to EUR 54,246 thousand (previous year: EUR 34,792
thousand), an increase of EUR 19,454 thousand. This growth
also improved earnings per share, which amounted to EUR
5.31in the reporting period. This represents an increase of
EUR 1.91 or 56% compared to the previous year.

As a result of this pleasing earnings development, Alzchem’s
financial position has also improved further. Thanks to the
strong operating cash flow, a significant increase in free cash
flow was achieved despite increased investment activity. In
addition, loan liabilities were repaid as planned in the past
fiscal year, factoring was reduced and cash and cash equiv-
alents increased at the same time. As a result, Alzchem con-
siders itself well equipped for future investments in growth
areas in order to further strengthen its market position and
achieve additional profitable growth (for further details on
the planned growth investments, see section 3.2.2.).

For the fiscal year 2024, the Management Board and Su-
pervisory Board will propose to the Annual General Meeting
that a dividend of EUR 1.80 (previous year: EUR 1.20) per
dividend-bearing share be distributed from the distribut-
able profit.
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3.2.7 COMPARISON OF EXPECTED AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPMENT

The forecast issued in the previous year’s annual report at Group level for the fiscal year
2024 was increased with regard to EBITDA and the EBITDA margin in the ad hoc announce-
ment dated July 30, 2024. The forecasts are therefore as follows

Adjusted forecast
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A review of the adjusted forecast based on the actual key figures for the fiscal year 2024
shows the following development

2024 Actual development in 2024

Group sales EUR 554.2 million Grown to EUR 554.2 million

Adjusted EBITDA* EUR 105.3 million Grown to EUR 105.3 million

Unit 2023 Original forecast 2024 2024 Adjusted EBITDA margin* 19.0% Grown to 19.0%
EUR Growingto  Growing to around Inventories EUR 101.2 million Significantly decreased
Group sales milion  >408 around EUR 570 million EUR 570 million
Inventory intensity 18.3% Significantly decreased
. EUR Growing to Growing to over
* . . . .
Adjusted EBITDA™ — uyion 814 around EUR 90 million EUR 100 million Equity ratio 42.9% Particularly strongly increased
. . * No adjustments were made. The value corresponds to the key figures from the IFRS consolidated financial statements.
Adju§ted EBITDA o 151 Growing to 15.8% Growing to over
margin* 17.5%
A comparison of the relevant key financial figures shows that the adjusted forecast for the
Inventories _E_UR 107.5 Stable Stable fiscal year 2024 was met or exceeded for the key figures adjusted EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA
mitlion margin, inventories, inventory intensity and equity ratio.
Inventory intensity % 19.9 Stable Stable As forecast, consolidated sales grew compared to the previous year. However, at EUR 554.2
. . . . illion, sal s ,I han f . Thi i il li |
Equity ratio % 38.5 Growing strongly Growing strongly million, sales were, as announced, lower than forecast. This was primarily due to deliberately

* No adjustments were made. The value corresponds to the key figures from the IFRS consolidated financial statements.

accepted volume reductions in the Basics & Intermediates segment when the price level
required for overall profitability could not be achieved in individual transactions. In addition,
the decline in the price level for energy and key raw materials was passed on to customers
in various business areas, particularly in the more energy- and raw material-intensive Basics
& Intermediates segment. Here, the forecast was still based on a higher cost and price level.
In absolute terms, this resulted in an increase in sales at the lower end of the forecast in the
fiscal year 2024, while at the same time significantly improving the key earnings figures and
increasing the Group’s overall profitability.
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4. POSITION OF ALZCHEM GROUP AG
(INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HGB)

Alzchem Group AG is the parent company of the Alzchem Group and is therefore significantly
influenced by the economic situation and development of the entire Group. As the parent
company of the Group, Alzchem Group AG assumes management and supervisory functions
for the subsidiaries as well as Group-wide commercial tasks in addition to its holding function.

The results of operations of Alzchem Group AG are mainly determined by the income re-
ceived from the profit transfer agreement with Alzchem Trostberg GmbH and by the charg-
ing of holding activities to the Group companies. In addition to monitoring the cost structure,
the following key figures from the HGB annual financial statements are used to manage
Alzchem Group AG:

Key figure Calculation
Sales Absolute value
EBIT Earnings before interest, income from investments and income taxes

Annual net profit Absolute value
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41 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The annual financial statements of Alzchem Group AG were prepared in accordance with the
accounting regulations of the German Commercial Code and the German Stock Corporation
Act.

411 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The annual result of Alzchem Group AG is calculated as follows:

in EUR thousand 2022 2023 2024 Change
Sales revenue 3,551 6,368 9,231 45.0%
Other operating income 4,307 4,334 4,935 13.9%
Personnel expenses -2,486 -4,982 EEEVECPIS 59.1%
Other operating expenses -5,213 -5,596 Nk 7.9%
EBIT 159 125 204 65.1%
Income from investments 13,424 53,908 ENY-%} 32.7%
Interest and similar income 323 1,174 2,680 128.2%
Interest and similar expenses -48 -15 -6 -59.1%
Taxes on income and earnings -4,355 -14,626
Earnings after taxes 9,503 40,567 BNy [0

Other taxes 0 -200 (0]

Annual net profit 9,503 40,367 BNy [0
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The increase in sales compared to the previous year is the result of higher personnel costs
to be allocated. Personnel costs increased compared to the previous year, primarily due to
the variable remuneration components linked to the IFRS consolidated result and the long-
term share price performance. This consequently led to a higher allocation to the operating
companies of the Alzchem Group.

Other operating income increased compared to the previous year, mainly due to higher pre-
miums from Group insurance policies passed on to affiliated companies.

The increase in personnel expenses compared to the previous year is mainly due to the
higher short-term and long-term variable remuneration of the members of the Management
Board.

The composition of other operating expenses is as follows:

in EUR thousand 2022 2023
Insurances 3,744 4,118
Expert opinion and audit expenses 146 266
Consulting expenses 535 535
Other miscellaneous expenses 788 677
T Other operating expenses 5,213 5,596 6,037

Other operating expenses mainly comprised insurance premiums, legal and consulting ex-
penses, expenses for the preparation of expert opinions and the audit of the annual financial
statements. The consulting expenses arose primarily from market studies, capital market
consulting and commercial law. The increase in insurance expenses compared to the previ-
ous year was due to higher insurance premiums.

®E 00«

Income from investments resulted exclusively from the profit transfer (including tax alloca-
tions) from Alzchem Trostberg GmbH. The sharp rise in earnings at Alzchem Trostberg GmbH
led to a growth in income from investments.

Interest and similar income mainly consisted of interest income from cash pooling with affil-
iated companies. Interest and similar expenses predominantly comprised non-cash interest
expenses from the compounding of long-term provisions for pensions and other personnel
provisions.

Income taxes consist of the current income tax expense of EUR 19,063 thousand (previous
year: EUR 14,844 thousand) on the company’s taxable income. This includes the results of the
subsidiaries included in the consolidated income tax group. In addition, deferred tax income
of EUR 836 thousand (previous year: EUR 281 thousand) was recognized. The aperiodic tax
expense amounted to EUR 124 thousand (previous year: EUR 62 thousand). The change in
income tax expenses is due to the increase in earnings before taxes.

4.1.2 FINANCIAL POSITION

The company is integrated into the cash pooling of Alzchem Trostberg GmbH. Within the
Alzchem Group, Alzchem Trostberg GmbH assumes the Group-internal financing function
and thus guarantees the short-term liquidity of the subsidiaries and the Group parent com-

pany.

The liquidity of Alzchem Group AG therefore depends directly on the liquidity of the cash
pool carrier Alzchem Trostberg GmbH. In view of the expected positive business develop-
ment of the Alzchem Group, the liquidity of Alzchem Group AG is secured at all times by
the financing agreement with Alzchem Trostberg GmbH and its currently available financing
instruments.

Due to cash pooling, Alzchem Group AG had no cash and cash equivalents at either reporting
date.
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4.1.3 NET ASSETS
12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024
EUR EUR EUR
thousand Share thousand W\ETE thousand  Share
Assets

Financial assets 231,412 82% 231,412 PN 231,412 62%

Non-current assets 231,412 82% 231,412 Yry¥’3 231,412 62%

Receivables and other

51,309 18%
assets

88,570 pasyl 139,914 37%

Cash and cash equivalents 0 0% (0] 0% 0 0%

Current assets 51,309 18% 88,570 b13/9 139,914 37%

Prepaid expenses and

OO < oo °O
deferred charges 236 <1% 212 1% 198 < 1%
Deferred tax assets 411 <1% 888 <1% 1,724 <1%
X Assets 283,368 100% 321,081 100% [cyicirZ:t:- T Nelob/

Financial assets did not change compared to the previous year and continued to include the
shares in Alzchem Trostberg GmbH.

Receivables and other assets mainly include receivables from affiliated companies and tax
receivables (input tax surplus) from the tax office. The change compared to December 31,
2023, is mainly due to increased financial receivables from Alzchem Trostberg GmbH due to
accumulated profit and loss transfer claims and higher tax receivables.

The allocation of deferred tax assets based on the tax allocation agreements in accordance
with Section 304 AktG, Section 16 KStG and DRS 18 resulted in the company mainly recog-
nizing differences from the different valuations of pension provisions in deferred tax assets.

®)
(D)
@
&
=)

®)

12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024
thousl;:: Share thousi:: Share thousigs Share
Equity 273,760 97% 304,120 95%
Provisions 4,121 1% 13,479 4% 21,026 6%
Liabilities 4,266 2% 2,091 1%
Deferred income 418 <1% 392 <1% 365 <1%
Deferred tax liabilities 803 <1% 999 <1% 999 <1%
I Capital 283,368 100% 321,081 100% [c¥kPrt] 100%

The increase in provisions is mainly due to higher tax provisions as a result of the increased
taxable result and higher performance-related personnel provisions, particularly in the long-
term area.

The liabilities were mainly to affiliated companies and mainly resulted from VAT liabilities of
Alzchem Group AG as the parent company to the consolidated subsidiaries.

4.1.4 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Key figure Calculation Unit 2022 2023
EUR
Sales Absolute value 3,551 6,368 9.231 +45.0%
thousand
Earnings before EUR o
EBIT interest and taxes thousand 159 125 2o Ao
Annualnet —,pcolute value EUR 9,503 40,367 XV MR EL L
profit thousand

The business model of Alzchem Group AG does not require any non-financial performance
indicators.
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4.2 COMPARISON OF EXPECTED AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPMENT

The forecast at the level of Alzchem Group AG for the fiscal year 2024 was as follows at the
time the annual financial statements for the fiscal year 2023 were prepared:

2023 Forecast for 2024

Sales EUR 6.4 million Clearly decreasing

EBIT EUR 125 thousand Stable

Annual net profit EUR 40.4 million Growing strongly

The review of the forecast as of December 31, 2024, shows the following developments in
the fiscal year 2024

2024 Actual development 2024

Sales EUR 9.2 million Particularly strong growth

EBIT EUR 204 thousand Particularly strong growth

Annual net profit EUR 56.1 million Particularly strong growth

Contrary to the sales forecast, particularly strong growth to EUR 9.2 million was achieved,
which resulted from the increase in share-based remuneration due to the sharp rise in the
share price. In line with the sales trend, EBIT also increased particularly strongly to EUR 204
thousand. The annual result also developed slightly more positively than expected, growing
particularly strongly from EUR 17.6 million to EUR 56.1 million as a result of the significant
increase in the profit transfer from Alzchem Trostberg GmbH. The EBITDA forecast for the
entire Alzchem Group was raised in July 2024 and ultimately achieved. As the main operating
company, Alzchem Trostberg GmbH made a significant contribution to this increase in EBIT-
DA and consequently also to the increase in net income.
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4.3 FORECAST REPORT OF ALZCHEM GROUP AG
(INDIVIDUAL COMPANY)

Derived from the Group forecast and its material influence on Alzchem Group AG (annual
financial statements under commercial law), the company provides the following forecast for
Alzchem Group AG for the fiscal year 2025:

2024 Forecast for 2025

Sales EUR 9.2 million Significantly decreasing

EBIT EUR 204 thousand Stable

Annual net profit EUR 56.1 million Strongly growing

The operating revenue of Alzchem Group AG is expected to decrease significantly in the
fiscal year 2025 due to lower personnel cost allocations.

The EBIT key figure will be influenced primarily by the cost-plus allocation of management,
assistance, financing, personnel and consulting services and will remain stable. In terms of
annual net profit, a strong increase in the result from the profit transfer is expected in line
with the explanations and the Group forecast.

5. RISK AND OPPORTUNITY REPORT

In order to ensure the legally required monitoring of material business risks by the Manage-
ment Board and the Supervisory Board, there are

- an internal control system, among other things to ensure proper and effective accounting
(Sections 289 para. 4 and 315 para. 4 HGB),

« a compliance management system based on the IDW PS 980 auditing standard

« and a risk management system that includes an early risk detection system in accordance
with Section 91 para. 2 AktG.

Overall responsibility for the internal control system (ICS) and the risk management system
lies with the Management Board of Alzchem Group AG.

Due to the profit and loss transfer agreement with Alzchem Trostberg GmbH, the risks and
opportunities situation of Alzchem Group AG basically corresponds to that of the Alzchem
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Group. Consequently, the following risk and opportunity report refers to both the Alzchem
Group and Alzchem Group AG.

5.1 RISK REPORT
STRUCTURE AND ORGANIZATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

The Management Board of Alzchem Group AG has appointed a risk manager who is available
as a central contact person for the Alzchem Group and continuously develops risk manage-
ment. He reports to the Management Board at least once a year on the summarized risk and
is in constant communication with the Management Board. Should risks arise that could jeop-
ardize the continued existence of the company, reports are also submitted during the year.
Risk management is carried out through regular meetings and reports from the respective
committees, bodies and specialist departments.

Risk management at the Alzchem Group encompasses all measures for the systematic and
transparent handling of risks and is an integral part of corporate management thanks to its
integration with the controlling processes. Every year, a standardized risk inventory is carried
out according to the enterprise risk management approach. A catalog with corresponding
risk categories is used to identify all relevant risks as completely as possible. In addition,
standardized assessment and reporting tools are available for recording and evaluating risks.
Identification is supported by IT-based queries and interviews between the risk manager
and the respective risk owners. The scaled risk volume is determined taking into account
the probability of occurrence and the extent of damage. The aim of this measure is the early
identification, assessment and management of risks that could have a significant impact on
the achievement of the company’s strategic, operational, financial and regulatory objectives.

To assess the risks, the expected effects of the risk dimensions in their specific characteris-
tics (very low, low, medium and high) are weighted with their individual probability of occur-
rence (very low, low, medium and high) and then converted into a point value on a three-level
scale. The level of the point value then determines the classification of the risk significance as
low, medium and high for the net assets, financial position and results of operations. Meas-
ures already taken to limit risks reduce the classification of risk significance.
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The valuation is based on the following assumptions:

very low low medium high

Probability of occurrence <10% 10% - < 30% 30% - <50% from 50%

A period of three years is used as the observation period. If risks lie in the more distant
future, these were also recorded, whereby the time horizon was taken into account when
estimating the damage.

The risk measures are based on the following assumptions, which serve as an indicator of the
impact on the net assets, financial position and results of operations:

very low low medium High

Impact in EUR million <1.8 1.8-<9 9-225 >225

The scope of risk consolidation corresponds to the scope of consolidation used for account-
ing purposes. The risks do not differ significantly between the segments and are not con-
centrated in just one segment due to the structure of the Group. Instead, the risks described
below apply across the Group and across segments.

As part of this risk management process, the following issues were identified that could have
a material or significantly adverse impact on the future development of the company.

The risk management system described focuses primarily on business risks but also address-
es opportunities. The opportunity management process is also integrated into the internal
controlling processes and is carried out in the operating segments on the basis of the cor-
porate strategy.

The Management Board assesses the appropriateness and effectiveness of the ICS and the
risk management system once a year. At the corresponding Management Board meeting, the
company-wide risk and opportunity situation is evaluated, the results of the internal control
process are explained and an overall statement on the appropriateness and effectiveness of
the ICS and the risk management system is made.



59 COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT  Annual report 2024 Alzchem Group AG

5.11 SUMMARY OF RISKS

The risks of the Alzchem Group identified as part of the risk inventory have no impact on
the Alzchem Group as a going concern, either individually or in interaction with each other,
taking into account the measures already taken or planned.

The categorization of risks and the structure of the risk report correspond to those of previ-
ous years and allow for comparability thanks to this continuity.

The risk areas are structured as follows:

Risk area

Sales markets

Production

Raw material markets

Logistics

Research and development

Human resources

Financial markets

Other

Each individual risk identified was assigned to a risk area as part of the risk inventory.

In summary, the individual risk areas were assigned the following estimates regarding the
extent of damage and probability of occurrence in accordance with the assessment assump-
tions described above.
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With regard to the maximum damage amount identified for an individual risk in a risk area, in
accordance with the above-mentioned valuation assumptions, the following probabilities of
occurrence are assigned to these individual risks:

Assessment maximum damage amount Assessment probability of occurrence

verylow low medium high very low low

medium  high

Financial
markets

Financial
markets

Sales markets Sales markets

Production Production

Raw material
markets

Raw material
markets

Logistics Logistics

Research and
development

Research and
development

Human
resources

Human
resources

Other Other

With regard to the highest possible probability of occurrence of an individual risk identified
in arisk area, according to the classification mentioned above, the following associated dam-
age amounts arise for these individual risks:

Assessment damage Assessment probability of occurrence

verylow low medium high

very low low

medium  high

Financial
markets

Financial
markets

Sales markets Sales markets

Production Production

Raw material
markets

Raw material
markets

Logistics Logistics

Research and
development

Research and
development

Human
resources

Human
resources

Other Other
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Significant individual risks arise as a result of persistently
high energy prices, strong competitive pressure from China,
approval restrictions and risks associated with the major in-
vestment in the expansion of nitroguanidine capacities. The
risk areas of logistics and research & development listed in
the overview are not discussed in detail due to their minor
significance in terms of risk exposure.

When carrying out the risk inventory, the expected values of
the individual risks are compared with the risk-bearing ca-
pacity. This involves estimating the expected risks and their
impact on the liquidity and equity of the Alzchem Group.
According to the analyses and estimated effects, there is no
knowledge that the risk-bearing capacity is not given.

5.1.2 SALES MARKETS
5.1.21 COMPETITION RISK

Alzchem faces competition of varying intensity with its var-
ious products. In some areas, the company is the regional
market leader, while in other areas competition is intense. In
some key markets, the main competitors come from regions
outside Europe, particularly China, where they benefit from
cost advantages in the areas of personnel, energy, waste
disposal and the environment. In other markets, Alzchem
competes with well-established and strong competitors
from leading industrialized nations, which often oper-
ate worldwide, have global distribution networks and can
produce locally in line with the local cost structure. In the
fiscal year 2024, the intensity of competition for some of
Alzchem'’s products will remain very high due to the persis-

tently high energy costs and constantly increasing regula-
tory requirements in Europe.

A loss of competitiveness could significantly influence the
demand for Alzchem’s products and therefore have a no-
ticeable negative impact on Alzchem'’s sales and revenue.

Various factors can influence the price at which a competi-
tor is prepared to supply its products. These include access
to cheap raw materials and state subsidies, which Alzchem
may not have. In addition, state-owned or state-support-
ed competitors could resort to measures such as capacity
increases and/or price reductions to dumping levels. In the
fiscal year 2024 and probably also in the future, increased
competitive pressure from China in particular is to be ex-
pected due to declining domestic demand and the resulting
increase in export pressure.

Alzchem is responding to declining competitiveness due
to increased manufacturing costs by improving produc-
tion efficiency and adjusting its product price and volume
strategy. In addition, Alzchem is trying to concentrate on
products with higher margins and to improve existing prod-
ucts and applications through innovations. In addition, the
economic opportunities of certain low-margin products are
continuously reviewed.

In addition to companies from India or China, there are also
local, globally active competitors who use their economies
of scale of higher production capacity, greater purchasing
power and more financial flexibility to offer products more
cheaply than Alzchem can. This can also lead to crowd-
ing-out effects with decreasing sales and declining sales.
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5.1.2.2 MARKET DEVELOPMENT

Market developments are defined as changes in customer
demand behavior due to external influences. Alzchem offers
a large number of different chemical products based on the
NCN chain in diversified markets, some of which are cycli-
cal, highly volatile and sensitive to consumer spending and
preferences, consumer confidence and income, unemploy-
ment rates, interest rates and energy prices, among other
factors. As a result, demand for Alzchem’s products may be
adversely affected by negative developments in some sec-
tors and industries.

In the agricultural sector, demand for Alzchem products de-
pends on production levels, which is why the company is
exposed to seasonal fluctuations as well as meteorological
and climatic conditions. In addition, the demand for food
produced without chemical fertilizers could increase and
lead to a decline in demand for chemical fertilizers.

In the animal feed and agrochemicals industry, a change
in consumer habits and preferences (increasing trend to-
wards organic meat) could lead to a decline in demand for
Alzchem'’s products. A change in consumer behavior to-
wards “less meat” could also have a negative impact on de-
mand for Alzchem products. Animal epidemics also lead to
a short-term to medium-term change in demand for prod-
ucts in the animal feed sector.

In the nutrition sector, Alzchem is exposed to the cyclical
fluctuations of the consumer markets for its nutritional sup-
plements. In addition, demand depends on the general ac-
ceptance of nutritional supplements.
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In general, there is always the risk that changes in economic
conditions will influence the demand behavior of customers.
If the global economy enters an economic downturn, this
can also affect Alzchem’s customers, who then buy fewer
Alzchem products. High inflation can also have a negative
impact on customer demand behavior. In addition, the re-
spective monetary and fiscal policy decisions of the individ-
ual governments of the world have an influence on regional
market development with potentially negative consequenc-
es for Alzchem.

Alzchem is exposed to all of these fluctuations and can
only counteract them through broad product and market
diversification. Despite the high product diversification of
the Group portfolio, there is a certain concentration on the
customer side. Alzchem supplies a large number of global
players in the worldwide chemical industry and is therefore
exposed to a risk inherent in the industry. This is countered
with a broad product range, contract-based cooperation
and strong customer loyalty.

5.1.2.3 SUBSTITUTION RISKS

In the area of chemical products, there is a latent risk that
individual compounds will be replaced by other chemical
substances or compounds or that completely new materials
or alternative technologies and production processes will be
established on the market that are improved, more cost-ef-
fective or more sustainable than Alzchem'’s products. Such
developments could have a negative impact on sales and
revenue and thus on the earnings situation of Alzchem.

Alzchem counters these risks by developing customer-spe-
cific products, providing intensive technical support and
advice to customers and jointly developing (new) products
that are specifically tailored to customer needs. As Alzchem
operates in many markets, it is essential that all these mar-
kets are closely monitored and that developments at cus-
tomers are constantly monitored by the sales team.

5.1.2.4 LEGAL CHANGES / POLICY

Alzchem's business activities are subject to extensive regu-
lations, which can change and become stricter as a result of
political decisions or changes. In particular, the regulatory
framework for environmental, health and safety matters in
Europe in general and for the manufacture and marketing
of products is subject to frequent changes, which in most
cases lead to the imposition of stricter requirements.

Specifically, the EU Commission’s restriction procedure for
the use of calcium cyanamide, which has been ongoing since
2019, is still pending. The European Commission has not yet
decided on the proposal submitted by the European Chem-
icals Agency (ECHA) to ban the use of calcium cyanamide as
a fertilizer following a three-year transitional period, even in
2024. However, numerous statements from stakeholders in
the EU Member States are against such a restriction and the
SEAC Committee of the EU Commission also strongly doubts
the benefits and proportionality of a ban. Even if a ban can-
not be ruled out, Alzchem continues to assume that the
ECHA proposal will not be adopted in this form. However, if
a ban were to be imposed, Alzchem would have to be pre-
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pared for a lower demand for Perlka® and possibly also for
other products to which the ECHA argumentation could be
applied. It is not certain whether the three-year transitional
period envisaged for a ban on use would be sufficient to ful-
ly compensate for the impending loss of sales in particular,
for example through growth in other markets.

The substance cyanamide, which is produced and used by
Alzchem, is also the subject of regulatory efforts. As already
reported in the last 2023 Annual Report, its use as a biocide
was banned by the EU Commission and other applications
could also be restricted in the medium term. Due to signif-
icant technical, legal and procedural deficiencies, Alzchem
has filed a lawsuit against the ban on use as a biocide with
the European Court of Justice and will also take appropriate
action in the event of further unfounded restrictions on use.

Furthermore, both the German legislator and the EU Com-
mission could in future prohibit the export of chemicals
and in particular pesticides that are banned in the EU itself.
This could have an impact on Alzchem products. However,
in view of the already existing comprehensive regulation in
this area and the outstanding benefits for users in the target
countries with different climatic and ecological conditions
than in Europe (for example with regard to pest infestation
and plant diseases), Alzchem continues to assume that such
a ban will not be implemented.

The European Commission has set itself the target of
achieving climate neutrality by 2050 and thus meeting its
commitments under the Paris Agreement. This target is to
be achieved through political initiatives as part of the Euro-
pean Green Deal. The EU Commission sees the “"Green Deal”
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as a growth strategy. Its implementation represents a major
challenge for the chemical and pharmaceutical industry, as
various measures could also have an impact on the sector.
Negative effects on Alzchem could arise if unrealistic tar-
gets are defined for the chemical industry or if ideological
ideas are given priority over scientific findings in product
approvals. In general, the “Green Deal” could lead to the re-
location of certain production processes to regions outside
the EU and thus to the migration of Alzchem’s customers.

At the present time and based on the current legal situation,
Alzchem does not see any further risks from a changing le-
gal environment beyond those reported. All existing pro-
duction facilities can continue to produce under the current
regulatory conditions and there are no approval restrictions
that have an impact on the current sales of Alzchem prod-
ucts.

5.1.3 PRODUCTION

As a manufacturing company, Alzchem is exposed to the
risk of business interruptions, for example as a result of
electricity or natural gas shortages, quality problems or un-
expected technical problems (e.g. due to technical failure,
sabotage or disasters). These risks can lead to production
interruptions or production downtime, personal injury and
reputational damage, a drop in sales or margins or the need
to rebuild destroyed infrastructure. These risks are mini-
mized through regular maintenance and renewal of existing
facilities, appropriate safety precautions that have already
been increased in the past year, insurance, etc. A project
group set up specifically for this purpose at Alzchem is ded-
icated to the topic of physical security with the aim of iden-
tifying and promptly eliminating existing gaps. In addition,
the main focus is on securing the major construction site for
the expansion of nitroguanidine capacities.

The risk of not receiving the plant components required for
maintenance or investments - particularly when expanding
nitroguanidine capacities - or not receiving them on time
is minimized by close monitoring and a precautionary pur-
chasing process.
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5.1.4 RAW MATERIAL MARKETS
5.1.4.1 ENERGY MARKETS

Alzchem is an energy-intensive company and electricity is
one of the three basic raw materials used at the beginning of
Alzchem’s NCN “Verbund production”. The term “energy-in-
tensive” therefore essentially refers to the consumption of
electricity. As a raw material, electricity is an essential com-
ponent of the manufacturing costs for Alzchem'’s products.
However, the share of electricity in the manufacturing costs
decreases the further the individual products progress in
the NCN “Verbund production” or if they are only at the
end of the NCN “Verbund production” or even outside of it.
Products from the Basics & Intermediates segment are very
electricity-intensive, whereas the products in the Specialty
Chemicals segment are less electricity-intensive.

The fiscal year 2024 has once again shown the impact that
high energy costs can have on Alzchem's net assets, finan-
cial position and results of operations. Although the volatil-
ity of electricity prices has normalized somewhat compared
to previous years, energy costs remain high and at times
extremely high. Electricity prices could rise again compared
to the 2024 level, remain stable or fall. Precise forecasts are
not possible. Alzchem is therefore exposed to the risk of
rising or fluctuating electricity prices.

As electricity prices are an integral part of the product cal-
culation, Alzchem can only counter this risk in the first step
by increasing prices but may have to reduce them again if
electricity prices fall. Alzchem therefore only sets prices for
a very short-term period in close consultation with custom-
ers. Increasingly, price escalation clauses are being agreed
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with customers that take into account spot electricity pric-
es, among other things. Alternatively, longer-term price
commitments are offered on the basis of back-to-back
transactions. Alzchem also continuously reviews develop-
ments on the electricity markets to determine whether a
hedging strategy makes economic sense.

In addition to the price increases, Alzchem also adjusts
production if necessary. The main electricity consumption
results from the operation of the two carbide furnaces in
Germany. Depending on developments on the electricity
markets, the carbide furnaces can be operated flexibly and
can also be switched off or partially shut down at short no-
tice in times of absolute electricity price peaks.

The third measure is to increasingly focus on products
whose production is less electricity-intensive. These prod-
ucts can further drive Alzchem'’s growth “away from elec-
tricity”.

The risk arising from the development of electricity prices
is that Alzchem’s customers will no longer accept the price
increases and Alzchem will therefore have to accept losses
in sales and revenue. The risk also includes the fact that the
price increases can only be passed on to customers with
a certain delay. If, in addition, the payment terms for the
electricity suppliers and the customers are far apart, this
can have negative effects on Alzchem'’s liquidity situation.

If the development of electricity prices generally leads to a
decline in industrial production in Germany and Europe, this
can have a negative impact on sales and revenue and thus
on the net assets, financial position and results of opera-
tions of Alzchem.

5.1.4.2 PROCUREMENT

The most important raw materials for Alzchem’s product
portfolio, which is based on carbide/calcium cyanamide, are
lime, coke and electrical energy. In addition, a number of
chemical raw materials are required for the production pro-
cess. The market prices for lime, coke and energy as well
as other chemical raw materials are subject to considerable
fluctuations.

In addition to these important basic raw materials, the
Group also procures chemical raw materials from Asia. Sup-
ply chain disruptions, unexpected production interruptions
and a lack of reliability on the part of suppliers are latent
risks that management must always take into account. De-
spite the strict pursuit of a “multiple sourcing strategy”,
certain supplier dependencies cannot be completely ruled
out, which further increases the complexity of the supply
chain process.

5.1.5 PERSONNEL

Qualified and committed employees are crucial to Alzchem's
future success. Due to the demographic development and
the increasing competition for good employees, retaining
existing and recruiting new suitable employees may be-
come increasingly challenging in the future. However, as
an attractive company rooted in the region, Alzchem con-
siders itself well equipped to defy the risks of emigration
or insufficient recruitment of new specialists. Through ap-
propriate training and further education, the permanent es-
tablishment of an employer branding and the consideration
of employee needs, Alzchem will also succeed in attracting
qualified and committed employees in the future.
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5.1.6 FINANCIAL MARKETS
5.1.6.1 LIQUIDITY RISK

Alzchem Trostberg GmbH assumes the financing function
within the Alzchem Group and ensures global financing via
cash pooling. Alzchem is financed via the operating cash
flow, long-term and short-term financing lines from banks
and factoring. Overall, Alzchem assumes that it can ensure
sufficient liquidity for the business activities of the Alzchem
Group at all times with the currently available financing
funds.

5.1.6.2 EXCHANGE RATE RISK

Alzchem generates sales in foreign currencies and pur-
chases goods in foreign currencies. The most important
currencies for Alzchem from these operating activities are
the US dollar (USD), Chinese renminbi (CNY), Japanese yen
(JPY) and Swedish krona (SEK). As a result, the company is
exposed to exchange rate risks. Currency hedging transac-
tions were carried out for selected transactions in the fis-
cal year 2024. In addition, Alzchem is constantly reviewing
whether further favorable hedging opportunities may arise.
The risk exposure for the main currencies is determined on
a weekly basis. There is also natural hedging for the most
important currency USD, as Alzchem has both sales and
goods purchases in USD and the risk position is therefore
reduced. The remaining open monetary amounts of receiv-
ables and liabilities in foreign currencies may result in op-
portunities and risks for Alzchem due to changes in actual
exchange rates and any income from currency translation
may be lower than in previous periods.
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In addition, there are exchange rate-related risks from the
translation of foreign subsidiaries into the reporting curren-
cy of Alzchem (euro). In addition, the exchange rates can
have an influence on Alzchem'’s global competitiveness. In
addition to the risks described, the company is also subject
to possible negative influences from currency losses from
so-called hyperinflationary countries due to its global busi-
ness activities. As a rule, Alzchem counters these risks by
invoicing in EUR or USD.

5.1.6.3 INTEREST RATE RISK

Alzchem has concluded the short-term financing lines at
variable interest conditions, which generally fluctuate de-
pending on the EURIBOR. Potential changes in these capital
market interest rates can lead to opportunities and risks for
the interest payments due. Changes in market interest rates
can also result in a change in the fair value of the fixed-in-
terest non-current loan liabilities. As a rule, Alzchem pre-
fers a fixed interest rate for long-term financing in order to
avoid or reduce the risk position but also enters into varia-
ble interest rates. In addition, the use of interest rate deriv-
atives is also regularly reviewed.

5.1.6.4 INTEREST RATE

DEVELOPMENT OF PENSION
OBLIGATIONS

The Alzchem Group has obligations to current and former
employees arising from pension and other similar benefit
commitments. Changes in relevant measurement parame-
ters, such as the discount rate, mortality rates, wage and
salary increase rates and pension increase rates, can result
in an increase or decrease in the present value of the pen-
sion obligations. This results in opportunities and risks, as a
change can have a direct impact on equity and subsequent-
ly lead to changes in pension expenses. The Management
Board has scenario analyses carried out at regular intervals
with regard to compliance with the financial covenants, thus
ensuring that changes are identified at an early stage and
countermeasures can be initiated on this basis.

5.1.7 OTHER
51.71 ELECTRICITY LEGISLATION

As an energy-intensive company, Alzchem is dependent on
stable and affordable electricity procurement. In this re-
spect, Alzchem in Germany currently benefits from cost and
tax reductions as well as exemption regulations for electric-
ity costs within the framework of the Combined Heat and
Power Act (KWKG), the offshore grid levy, the Electricity
Grid Fee Ordinance (StromNEV), electricity price compen-
sation and certain exemption regulations with regard to
electricity tax. All of these regulations enable energy-inten-
sive industries to operate at a lower electricity cost level in
order to maintain their overall competitiveness.
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Taken together, these regulations lead to significant re-
ductions in Alzchem'’s energy costs, without which the
company would hardly be able to operate competitively.
In this respect, negative changes to the relevant legisla-
tion could have a negative impact on the Group's develop-
ment. Alzchem is therefore closely monitoring the relevant
legislation and case law and will continue to duly submit all
necessary applications for the assertion of cost and tax re-
ductions as well as for exemption regulations.

5.1.7.2 LEGAL, LITIGATION AND

COMPLIANCE RISKS

The Alzchem Group is exposed to risks from legal disputes
or proceedings. These include, in particular, risks from the
areas of product liability, antitrust law, competition law, pat-
ent law, tax law and environmental protection. As in the past
years, the Group is not currently involved in any major court
or arbitration proceedings that could have a significant im-
pact on the Group’s economic situation.

Alzchem'’s business activities, in particular its sites, facilities,
products and operations, must comply with and are affect-
ed by a variety of different regulatory requirements in the
countries in which it operates. The regulatory framework
for Alzchem’s business activities is subject to ongoing leg-
islative changes and developments, which may necessitate
costly compliance measures.

There can be no assurance that Alzchem will be able to re-
new or continue to utilize on a permanent basis all permits,
approvals, certificates and authorizations required for its
business activities.

However, the Group has established a compliance manage-
ment system based on IDW PS 980 with the aim of ensuring
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that employees act lawfully, responsibly and sustainably.
Potential infringements are to be identified in advance and
systematically prevented. The compliance management
system therefore makes a significant contribution to inte-
grating compliance into the operating business units and
their processes. Regular training courses for employees in
Germany, Sweden, the USA, China and the UK strengthen
understanding and awareness of the issues involved.

5.1.7.3 IT RISKS

The global increase in threats to information security and
greater professionalism in computer crime lead to risks with
regard to the security of products, systems and networks as
well as the confidentiality, availability and reliability of data.

Cyber-attacks are becoming more and more professional.
At the same time, Alzchem’s IT dependency is growing. A
threat to critical IT systems and applications can have a di-
rect impact on Alzchem’s production or supply chain op-
erations. If data is unavailable or manipulated, this can, for
example, affect plant safety and the accuracy of financial
reporting. Unauthorized access to sensitive data, such as
information relevant to competition law or research results,
can jeopardize Alzchem'’s competitive position.

In order to minimize such risks, information security is an
integral part of Alzchem’s business processes. As early as
July 2017, Alzchem established an information security man-
agement system that is fully certified in accordance with the
international ISO 27001 and ISO 27019 standards. The cer-
tificates are currently valid until December 27, 2027.

Alzchem has stable and redundant IT systems, back-up pro-
cedures, virus and access protection, encryption systems

and integrated, Group-wide standardized IT infrastructures
and applications. The information security systems in are
constantly checked, continuously updated and expanded as
required. In addition, employees receive regular training on
information security and data protection. The asset-based
information security risk management follows the holistic
"bottom-up” approach and includes intangible assets. The
Alzchem Group's security policy is set out in internal manu-
als and made clear to employees throughout the company.

51.7.4 CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS

Climate-related risks are generally understood to be the
physical and transitory risks that may arise as a result of
climate change. Physical climate risks are, for example,
damage to infrastructure caused by the consequences of
climate change, such as drought, flooding or continuous
rainfall. Transitory climate risks result from the transition
from an economy driven by fossil fuels to one with low
greenhouse gas emissions.

Alzchem currently considers physical climate-related risks
to be of minor importance.

For Alzchem as an energy-intensive and manufacturing
company, climate-related risks arise in particular from reg-
ulatory changes, such as in the area of product approvals
and energy legislation. This is reported on separately in sec-
tions 5.1.2.4. and 5.1.7.1.

Alzchem has drawn up its own climate roadmap and pre-
sented it to the Annual General Meeting in May 2023. The
aim is for Alzchem to become climate-neutral - especially
with regard to Scope 1 emissions - significantly faster than
the EU envisages. The main focus here is on avoiding CO,
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emissions and withdrawing from the use of fossil fuels. The-
oretically, the climate roadmap could result in a change in
the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment.
This was reviewed and no additional risks arise from this.
The measures in the climate roadmap are mainly expansions
or new investments that do not require existing facilities to
be dismantled before the end of their estimated useful life
or at all.

A company’s carbon footprint can lead to a negative per-
ception and limited attractiveness for external stakeholders,
such as customers and investors. Alzchem counters these
risks through various measures, such as the development
and publication of a climate roadmap, the annual publication
of an environmental statement, the voluntary preparation
and business audit of a sustainability report (“CSRD report”),
taking into account the new European Sustainability Report-
ing Standards (ESRS), which have not yet been implement-
ed in Germany, as well as ongoing information on progress
from the climate roadmap and other energy measures. This
information is explained transparently in publicly accessible
sources, for example quarterly and annual reports or on the
Alzchem website and is also addressed in direct exchanges
with external interest groups.

5.2 OPPORTUNITY REPORT

As part of its risk management, Alzchem also regularly iden-
tifies and evaluates opportunities that arise in the business
areas. However, these represent only a small, but for the
company the most significant, section of the opportuni-
ties available. In addition, the assessment of opportuni-
ties is subject to continuous change. The most significant
opportunities listed here are actively pursued by Alzchem
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with equal weighting and transferred to the internal per-
formance indicators. Reference is made to the performance
indicators mentioned above.

The scope of consolidation of opportunities corresponds
to the scope of consolidation used for accounting purpos-
es. The opportunities do not differ significantly between
the segments or are not concentrated in just one segment.
Rather, the opportunities described below exist throughout
the Group and across all segments.

5.2.1 DIVERSIFICATION AND GLOBAL

PRESENCE

The Alzchem Group operates a stable NCN family tree with
the key products calcium carbide, fertilizer Perlka®, cyana-
mide, dicyandiamide, nitroguanidine and other high-quality
derivatives, such as DYHARD®, Creapure® and Creamino®.
The company strives to consistently exploit opportunities
for growth through a combination of diversification, market
penetration and market development.

Changes in market conditions and regulatory changes are
continuously monitored and, where possible and sensible,
exploited immediately. In addition to traditional products,
the company also continuously invests in new products and
new applications for existing products.

Alzchem supplies different end markets with a wide range of
products. This high level of diversification permanently sup-
ports very balanced sales and earnings growth with foot-
holds in many different market segments and industries. To
date, the Group has always succeeded in offsetting or even
overcompensating for economic or regional sales fluctua-
tions in one sector through growth in another segment or
country.

As part of its global presence in more than 70 countries,
comprehensive market potential is identified and systemat-

ically processed and implemented in the short, medium and
long term using project tools developed in-house.

Finally, not least due to the agreement concluded with the
US Department of Defense (see section 3.2.2. of the com-
bined management report), Alzchem has the opportunity
to position itself even better with its own production site in
the USA and to supply its customers comprehensively from
outside Europe in the future. If the search for a location is
successful, Alzchem will make the best possible use of this
opportunity.

5.2.2 NCN CHAIN AND BACKWARD
INTEGRATION

Through a backward-integrated production chain, Alzchem
secures a high degree of independence, which minimizes
the risk of turbulence in supply chains and delivery difficul-
ties. Increasing customer awareness of this and the willing-
ness to pay a premium for a secure supplier in Europe are
among the major opportunities for Alzchem.

5.2.3 GROWTH POTENTIAL IN LINE
WITH GLOBAL DEVELOPMENTS

Alzchem sells its products in diversified markets that follow
global developments, have the potential for stable growth
and should therefore benefit Alzchem'’s business develop-
ment. In fiscal year 2024, more than 80% of the Specialty
Chemicals segment’s sales were attributable to the global
developments of population growth, healthy ageing, climate
protection through energy efficiency and defense.

POPULATION GROWTH

The world’s population is growing steadily and needs to be
fed. At the same time, the amount of arable land availa-
ble worldwide is limited. Against this background, efficient
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processes are necessary in order to continue to supply the
growing population with food in the best possible way. The
products of the Alzchem Group meet these requirements
and can be used in agricultural production that is increas-
ingly oriented towards optimized yields. Alzchem believes it
is well positioned to benefit from this global development.
Creamino®, for example, a patented feed additive from
Alzchem'’s Specialty Chemicals segment, is primarily used
worldwide in poultry nutrition and leads to an improved
supply of the important biomolecule creatine. In addition to
its use in poultry, Creamino® could be increasingly used in
the nutrition of other animal species in Europe and around
the world.

HEALTHY AGEING

According to Alzchem, the nutrition industry is influenced
by the increasing health awareness of consumers and in-
novations in health technologies. The products Creapure®,
Creavitalis® and LIVADUR® as dietary supplements, as well
as Bioselect®, which consists of high-purity guanidine hy-
drochloride and is used in biotechnology, diagnostics and
the pharmaceutical industry, are benefiting from these
megatrends.

CLIMATE PROTECTION

Alzchem supports the global efforts to reduce greenhouse
gases and to save or avoid CO, with various solutions.

The Specialty Chemicals segment, for example, includes
the DYHARD® product group, which reduces the weight of
cars and aircraft in wind turbines and in the automotive and
aerospace industries, for example, thereby improving their
energy efficiency.

The product Eminex® launched by Alzchem also deserves
special mention. It reduces the release of methane during
the storage of farm manure and can greatly reduce the im-
pact of greenhouse gases from agriculture on the atmos-
phere. Should farmers be subject to similar requirements to
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avoid greenhouse gases as the industry already has today,
this could represent a significant opportunity for Alzchem
with its Eminex® product. In addition, privately organized
certificate systems could increase the chances of using the
product.

Finally, Alzchem has drawn up its own climate roadmap,
which was approved by the Annual General Meeting in May
2023. The aim is for the company to become climate-neu-
tral much faster than the EU envisages - while at the same
time improving profitability. The main focus is on avoiding
CO, emissions and phasing out the use of fossil fuels. The
measures envisaged in the climate roadmap will also re-
sult in process improvements and a reduction in the use of
raw materials. In addition, ongoing communication about
the measures and their implementation can also lead to a
positive image among (potential) customers. Initial inquir-
ies from new and existing customers regarding the cli-
mate-neutral manufacture of certain products have already
been received. Alzchem therefore sees the work on the cli-
mate roadmap and informing the public about it as an op-
portunity for cost savings and sales growth.

DEFENSE

Increasing geopolitical tensions have brought the defense
sector back into the focus of national governments. In the
democratically governed countries of the world, Russia’s in-
vasion of Ukraine has led to a significant increase in nation-
al defense budgets and a growing acceptance among the
population. Alzchem supplies the product nitroguanidine as
a propellant to the defense sector and is facing a significant
increase in demand, which is why an extensive investment
program has been launched with the aim of doubling pro-
duction capacity for nitroguanidine from the second half of
the fiscal year 2026.

5.2.4 STRONG BRANDS

Thanks to its reliability, many years of quality work and con-
tinuous image building, Alzchem has strong brands that of-
fer enormous opportunities for further growth. Creapure®
as the leading brand for creatine monohydrate is an exam-
ple of this. Alzchem has a total of 955 registered brands and
57 trademark applications worldwide. This broad, estab-
lished range of brands offers the company special market
opportunities.

5.2.5 MARKET ENTRY BARRIERS

Alzchem benefits from entry barriers to markets in which it
operates. It can be time-consuming and costly for poten-
tial new competitors to establish an integrated production
network similar to Alzchem'’s, to obtain certifications, reg-
istrations and approvals for plants and products in a high-
ly regulated market environment and to achieve Alzchem’s
level of know-how and industrial property rights.

INTEGRATED PRODUCTION NETWORK

Alzchem is a vertically integrated manufacturer of specialty
chemicals in the NCN network. Competitors focus on dif-
ferent sectors of the NCN “Verbund”, while Alzchem'’s in-
tegrated production network enables it to cover the entire
NCN chain. The integrated production network gives the
company particular flexibility to better deal with changes
in demand for individual products. Furthermore, Alzchem is
not as dependent on the raw material markets for the pre-
liminary products that are manufactured within the NCN
network itself. Despite the high degree of specialization of
the Specialty Chemicals segment’s products, Alzchem can
use its production facilities for a large number of products,
which it believes gives the company a competitive advan-
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tage in terms of resource efficiency as a result of vertical
integration.

ELECTRICITY AS A SOURCE OF RAW MATERIALS

Another advantage of the production network lies in the
raw material source of electricity. The entire chemical in-
dustry will have to switch from fossil fuels to electrici-
ty-based processes. This means high transfer investments,
which Alzchem will not have, however, as its business model
is already based on electricity and can be operated flexi-
bly along renewable energies within certain limits. Alzchem
therefore neither has to bear transfer investments towards
an electricity business model nor does Alzchem suffer ef-
ficiency losses that competitors will have if they have to
switch their business model away from fossil energy to elec-
tricity and hydrogen.

REGULATORY ENTRY BARRIERS IN THE MARKETS

Some of the sectors in which Alzchem operates are highly
regulated. This applies in particular to the market for chemi-
cal products in general, the market for biocidal products and
crop protection products, the market for food supplements
and animal feed additives as well as the pharmaceutical and
cosmetics sector. Alzchem has the necessary approvals,
registrations and certificates to produce and distribute its
products in these highly regulated markets. The company
also holds certain certificates, registrations and approvals
that may be difficult, costly or time-consuming for potential
competitors to obtain.

Alzchem could even benefit from increasing regulation here,
including with regard to a possible ban on SVHC substances.
For example, melamine was classified as an SVHC substance
by the European Chemicals Agency ECHA at the beginning
of 2023. Studies are currently underway to replace mela-
mine with dicyandiamide (DCD) in selected applications.
Alzchem is the only producer of DCD in Europe.
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KNOW-HOW, TRADEMARKS AND INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

High product quality, delivery reliability, process know-how and industrial property rights are
the result of Alzchem’s research and development activities, making it difficult for compet-
itors to enter the markets in which Alzchem brands predominate. In the Specialty Chemicals
segment in particular, innovations, know-how and their adequate protection are of funda-
mental importance.

Accordingly, several Alzchem products are protected by patents or trademarks that prevent
competitors from imitating Alzchem products. As of the current reporting date, the company
holds 382 granted patents and a further 108 patent applications. In addition, Alzchem has
955 registered trademarks and 57 trademark applications.

5.2.6 LOCAL DISTRIBUTION

Alzchem continued to successively expand its direct marketing channels for various prod-
ucts in the past fiscal year 2024. This will continue in the coming years, enabling Alzchem to
offer a more attractive range of prices and services based on greater customer proximity.
The gradual expansion of own brands and the intensification of own sales will bring with it
a multitude of opportunities and possibilities. For Alzchem, there is the possibility of further
expanding the integration that is already deeply rooted in the company’s DNA in integrat-
ed production. Through even greater customer proximity, Alzchem can respond even more
specifically to the requirements and wishes of users and thus constantly adapt its solutions
to customer and market needs.
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6. FORECAST REPORT

The Alzchem Group's forecasts for the fiscal year 2025 are based on the following assump-
tions:

« No occurrence of a global recession; general global economic situation developing at the
currently forecast level

« Extrapolation of costs for raw materials and logistics stable at 2024 level

« Electricity price remains at the increased level of the fourth quarter of 2024

« Existing authorizations are retained, requested authorizations are granted

« Raw materials and logistics are generally available

« Ukraine war delivers no further disruptions

« No additional market barriers or restrictions on global trade (e.g. through US tariffs)

The following table provides an overview of the forecast values for the Group’s financial per-
formance indicators for the fiscal year 2025:

2024 Forecast 2025

Group sales EUR 554.2 million Growing to around EUR 580 million

Adjusted EBITDA* EUR 105.3 million Growing to around EUR 113 million

Adjusted EBITDA margin* 19.0% Growing to around 19.5%

Inventories EUR 101.2 million Particularly strong growth

Inventory intensity 18.3% Slightly growing

Equity ratio 42.9% Slightly decreasing

* No adjustments were made.

The planned sales growth should continue to be achieved organically; acquisitions are not
included in the forecast. The fundamental growth drivers are mainly volume effects. Price ef-
fects will also play a role, in line with developments on the raw materials and energy markets.
We expect the segments’ sales performance to vary. Sales growth in the Specialty Chemicals
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segment will more than compensate for the decline in sales
in the Basics & Intermediates segment.

Further growth in the Specialty Chemicals segment is to be
achieved primarily through volume increases in the prod-
ucts Creapure®, Creamino® and Nitroguanidine. These areas
were already characterized by steady growth in the fiscal
year 2024 and have now reached a high sales level. Further
significant volume growth will require an increase in pro-
duction capacity. The planned expansion in the Creapure®
product area and optimization of the existing facilities are
part of the forecast. The investment project to expand ca-
pacity for guanidine nitrate and nitroguanidine (for further
details on the investment project, see 3.2.2.) will not yet
have a significant impact on sales in 2025. Commissioning of
the new plants is scheduled for the second half of 2026. In
addition to the products mentioned above, we also expect
an increase in volumes and sales in the Custom Manufac-
turing segment (multi-purpose systems) compared to the
previous year. After sales in this area have been declining
since 2023 due to the negative development of the general
chemical economy in Germany, we expect demand to re-
cover in the fiscal year 2025.

Sales in the Basics & Intermediates segment are expected
to be slightly below the previous year's level. The require-
ment that volume reductions are deliberately accepted if
the market does not allow for profitable pricing could lead
to a further decline in volumes and sales in individual busi-
ness areas. A positive development could be achieved in
the NITRALZ® product area. Initial successes and positive

trends from the strategy project launched in 2024 can be
seen here. In this area too, Alzchem wants to increasingly
move away from standard applications towards niche ap-
plications in growth markets in order to gain a significant
competitive advantage over the dumping competition from
Asia. Ongoing discussions with customers in this regard are
very positive that this strategy can lead to a trend reversal.

In the Other & Holding segment, we anticipate a slight in-
crease in sales from network operation services at the
chemical parks in Trostberg and Hart.

We expect prices for the most important raw materials and
logistics to remain stable at the 2024 level and energy prices
to remain at the higher level of the fourth quarter of 2024.

The Alzchem Group anticipates an increase in personnel
costs in line with the collective wage agreements in the
chemical industry from June 2024. In addition, the number
of employees is expected to rise in preparation for the plant
expansion for nitroguanidine

The EBITDA margin in the Specialty Chemicals segment is
traditionally higher than in the Basics & Intermediates seg-
ment. We expect this to continue in 2025. The sales growth
in the Specialty Chemicals segment will lead to a further in-
crease in this segment’s share of Alzchem'’s total sales. Con-
sequently, the EBITDA share of this segment and the EBITDA
margin of Alzchem will also increase.

The forecast EBITDA development does not include any ef-
fects from the investment project to expand capacities for
guanidine nitrate and nitroguanidine (for details on the in-
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vestment project, see 3.2.2.). In the fiscal year 2025, neither
increases in sales nor investment grants recognized in profit
or loss are expected as a result.

A sharp increase in inventories is forecast. The expected
increase in inventories is due to the scheduled extended
maintenance of a carbide furnace at the Hart site in the first
half of 2026. In order to ensure the supply of carbide to pro-
duction operations during this time, a temporary increase in
inventories is required in 2025. Assuming at least stable raw
material costs, no significant appreciation or depreciation
effects are expected. Inventory intensity also develops as a
calculated value at a higher level compared to 2024.

Following the development of EBITDA, equity is expected
to increase. Although equity will be reduced by the planned
dividend payment, the positive effect on earnings should
outweigh this. A slight decline in the equity ratio is expect-
ed. This is due to accounting effects from the investment
project to expand capacities for guanidine nitrate and ni-
troguanidine (for details on the investment project, see
3.2.2.). Due to the increased investment activity in 2025 and
the initial recognition of the incoming customer subsidies as
liabilities, a significant balance sheet extension is expected.
This could slightly reduce the equity ratio, despite the ab-
solute increase in equity. An actuarial interest rate of 3.4%,
which is at the current level, is expected for the planning
of pension provisions. A reduction in the actuarial interest
rate below this amount would have a one-to-one negative
impact and an increase in the actuarial interest rate would
have a positive impact on the forecast equity ratio
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For the non-financial performance indicators (see 3.2.5.4.2.)
« sustainable customer loyalty,

« Education,

« Management systems and

« Environment and energy

Alzchem is also optimistic that it will continue to improve.

The company is striving to maintain customer loyalty at
the level of previous years and, in selected business are-
as, to expand it even further where possible. Proximity to
customers has proven to be a key success factor of the
Alzchem business model, particularly in view of the distor-
tions caused by the crises of recent years and the resulting
volatile markets. This gives us the opportunity to respond
quickly to customer inquiries and problems.

In the area of training, the number of trainees will be main-
tained. However, the planned increase in the total workforce
may result in a slight decrease in the percentage figure.

All management systems and certificates will continue to be
maintained. Alzchem strives to achieve optimization, which
generally means a reduction, in the key environmental and
energy figures for five main reasons:

« Reducing the impact on the environment,
« Reduction in expenses for disposal,
« Conservation of resources,

« Orientation of production facilities towards future-proof
and sustainable processes,

« Compliance with national and international regulations.

In this context, a large number of individual measures are
being implemented, so that Alzchem continues to assume
that the targets set will be achieved.

Furthermore, it is assumed that availability on the logistics
and commodities markets, which has now stabilized again,
will continue. The possible effects of an increase in current
global political tensions are also not included in this fore-
cast.

In summary, it can be stated that the Alzchem Group,
with its broad positioning and solid financial basis, is well
equipped for challenging phases. Alzchem will continue to
attach great importance to this in the future.

The actual development of the Alzchem Group and its seg-
ments may deviate both positively and negatively from the
forecasts made due to the opportunities and risks described
or in the event that the expectations and assumptions made
do not materialize.

The forecasts are based on unchanged regulatory assump-
tions, such as Section 19 (2) StromNEV, electricity price
compensation, the provisions of the Energy Financing Act
(EnFG) or product approvals. It also contains forward-look-
ing statements that are based on management’s current
estimates and currently available information. Such state-
ments are subject to risks and uncertainties that are be-
yond Alzchem's ability to control or estimate precisely, such
as future market and economic conditions, the behavior
of other market participants, the successful integration of
potential acquisitions and the achievement of anticipated
synergies and the actions of government regulators. Should
any of these uncertainties or other imponderables materi-
alize or should the assumptions on which these statements
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are based prove incorrect, actual results may differ mate-
rially from those expressed or implied by such statements.

This forecast contains forward-looking statements about
the business activities of Alzchem. Terms such as “may”,
“will”, "assume”, “expect”, "anticipate”, “see”, "assume”,
“take into account”, “plan” are used. These terms and varia-
tions of these terms or similar expressions identify these for-
ward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements
represent the current estimates, judgments, expectations
and assumptions of Alzchem'’s Board of Management, some
of which are beyond Alzchem’s control and are based on
the best information available at the time this forecast was
prepared. They are subject to existing risks and uncertain-
ties. Should these estimates, assessments, expectations and
assumptions of the Management Board of Alzchem not ma-
terialize in the future or deviate from the original assess-
ment, the actual key figures of Alzchem may deviate from
the given forecast.

7. INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM RELATED TO THE
ACCOUNTING PROCESS

The management of Alzchem Group AG and its consolidat-
ed subsidiaries is responsible for the establishment, appli-
cation and further development of an appropriate internal
control system (ICS) with regard to the accounting process.
This system is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Of-
ficer and is intended to ensure that the consolidated finan-
cial statements are prepared in accordance with the IFRS
Accounting Standards and the annual financial statements
of Alzchem G